
REPORT
2014

ANNUAL

ABN 75 052 046 625





R
EP

O
R

TS
   P

ages 4
 –

 2
0

A
B

O
U

T   P
ages 2

 –
 3

FIN
A

N
C

IA
L R

EP
O

R
T   P

ages 2
1

 –
 6

4
C

O
N

TA
C

T IN
FO

R
M

ATIO
N

   P
age 6

5

1

Contents

02
 About TFSL

04
Chairman’s 

Report

06
CEO’s Report

08
Board of 

Directors 

13 
Demutualisation

of TFSL

15 
Transport Health 

15
Dental on Swan

17
Park Hill Gardens

Aged Care Facility 

19
The Village 

at Mornington

20
Seabird Restaurant

21
Financial 

Report

65
Contact 

Information



2

Transport Health
Transport Health provides private health 

insurance to transport workers and their 

families. Transport Health offers great benefi ts 

on both hospital and ancillary treatment cover, 

and offers service nationwide through the 

contracted network of providers.

Mornington 

Retirement Village
Situated in Mornington on the picturesque 

peninsula of the same name, The Mornington 

Retirement Village comprises 189 independent 

living units and the Shearwater Apartments 

complex of 36 serviced apartments.

About TFSL

at THE MORNINGTON

at THE MORNINGTON

at THE MORNINGTON

Originally established in 1888 to serve the interests of the Melbourne 

Tramway Board, the society developed to represent members of all 

arms of Australia’s Transport Industry.

Following our demutualisation in April, TFSL became a for profi t organisation 

in July 2014.

The society’s activities include:
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Park Hill Gardens
Park Hill Gardens, also located on the beautiful 

Mornington Peninsula, offers exceptional 

nursing care for low care, high care and 

dementia specifi c needs. The purpose-built 

facility is staffed 24 hours a day by Registered 

Division 1 Nurses, Registered Enrolled Division 

2 Nurses and Personal Care Attendants.

Dental on Swan
Situated in Richmond, in Melbourne’s inner 

east, the Dental on Swan clinic provides state-

of-the-art treatment in preventative, restorative 

and prosthetic dentistry.

at THE MORNINGTON
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Chairman’s Report 
Martyn Pickersgill

Following the demutualisation, the businesses of 

TFSL were reviewed to determine their value to the 

shareholders.

Transport Health continues to deliver both outstanding 

value and excellent service to policyholders however 

it has become increasingly diffi cult to maintain 

this service level as competition and regulation 

increases. The Board determined that the interests of 

shareholders and policyholders would be best served 

by selling Transport Health to a larger, better resourced 

organisation. Potential purchasers were rigorously 

screened to ensure these organisations shared the 

values of high quality health care and insurance service 

standards that Transport Health has delivered.

Due to a close working relationship and joint services 

offered by Dental on Swan the inclusion of Dental on 

Swan in the sale of Transport Health was a logical 

decision. On September 18th the sale of Transport 

Health and Dental on Swan to Primary Health Care 

Limited was announced. Primary Health Care Limited 

is a large national health provider with an extensive 

national network of healthcare and ancillary services.

Until the sale is complete our staff will continue to 

advise members on the range of comprehensive 

options available and it is business as per usual.

Our Health Insurance management team has been 

capably led by Tracy Palmer who is committed to the 

growth of the health fund by building on key strengths, 

namely the belief shared amongst staff of all levels that 

what we provide to policyholders is of great value.

Similar to Transport Health; Park Hill Gardens delivers 

high quality service standards. However the combination 

of increased regulation and changes to government 

funding has highlighted the need for these services 

to be aligned with a larger organisation which has the 

delivery of aged care businesses as its core business.

When the activities and fi nancial performance of Park 

Hill Gardens were analysed, it was apparent that a 

single aged care facility would struggle to survive in a 

highly regulated industry with the level of compliance 

now required. It was with this in mind that the Board 

arrived at the decision to sell Park Hill Gardens. 

After extensive consultation with our in-house aged 

care management team and industry experts, a number 

of quality experienced aged care providers were invited 

to tender for the purchase of Park Hill Gardens. In the 

fi nal evaluation of the proposals received, one stood 

out clearly. 

The not-for-profi t service, mecwacare was selected.

mecwacare is a major provider of residential, nursing 

and support services for the frail aged, disadvantaged 

and people with special needs and disabilities. 

mecwacare’s primary objective is to enhance the 

quality of life of people in need of care, especially the 

elderly, through the delivery of innovative, responsive 

and fully-evaluated services offered in residential 

settings, community facilities and clients’ homes.

Ro Jackman has made a signifi cant contribution to 

shaping the culture and service excellence at Park Hill 

Gardens and has announced her intention to realign 

her working life balance towards retirement. On behalf 

of the Board and management I would like to wish Ro 

every success in her future endeavours.

2014 was a momentous year for TFSL. A yearlong project 

was undertaken to put the question of demutualisation to our 

members. On April 2nd 2014 the vote was overwhelmingly 

endorsed by the members. Share notifi cations have been sent 

out and were enthusiastically received by our new shareholders.
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We recently completed a review with residents to 

canvas their views on proposed improvements to the 

Clubhouse and, undertook a survey to gauge their 

overall satisfaction with the services and facilities 

that we currently provide. We’re proud to announce 

that residents report being very happy living at 

The Mornington and as a result, have made some 

wonderful suggestions to improve the Clubhouse and 

its facilities. TFSL engaged the services of Thomson 

Adsett Architects who produced three design concepts 

for renovation which were presented to the residents at 

the Village Open Day. We’re very excited about making 

some improvements to the Clubhouse to evolve with 

our residents’ needs and interests and the preliminary 

concepts have been enthusiastically received.

On July 1st the Government announced changes to 

Aged Care funding which we believed were important 

to share with our residents and their families. As we 

believe it’s important to start the conversation about 

the changes that will impact on residents and their 

families, TFSL, in conjunction with The Mornington, 

held three information sessions in July to provide 

residents with an overview of the changes to Aged 

Care. The information sessions were well attended 

by residents, their families and members of the 

community who enjoyed presentations from specialist 

aged care fi nancial and legal advisors. 

Our residents are a thoughtful and refl ective community 

whose feedback on these sessions indicated they 

drew some value from the provision of information 

that would assist them in making decisions for their 

future. This past year has focused on generating ideas 

for innovation and improvement at the Clubhouse in 

collaboration with residents as we remain focused on 

providing a lifestyle environment that is responsive to 

residents’ views and their happiness.

The Board and management are committed to achieving 

the highest standards of corporate governance and risk 

management. The Board continues to ensure that they 

keep themselves involved through a commitment to 

professional development and training. We continue to 

develop our staff who will take us into the future as 

we progress with training courses and development 

programs that will ensure that our staff are ahead of the 

norm and continue to develop their business acumen.

The Future
The future is looking very positive for the shareholders 

of TFSL following the demutualisation and our ability to 

generate funds is greatly enhanced

I’d like to offer my thanks to all my fellow directors 

for their contributions and commitment throughout the 

year and in particular for the work of the directors on 

the Audit and Building committees who have worked 

tirelessly.

My thanks also go to all staff who have contributed 

to the operation of TFSL in the last fi nancial year, in 

particular Derek Cafferty, Sharon Brearley Roberts and 

Tracy Palmer.

We look forward to the coming fi nancial year with 

excitement and optimism.
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Chief Executive 
Offi cer’s Report 
2014 in Review – Derek Cafferty

The demutualisation provided the structure and 

created the momentum for the Board to review all 

business streams that TFSL operate as many changes 

have occurred since the society was fi rst established 

in 1888.

The Board has also considered our continued ability to 

operate each business unit in the broader economic 

environment. A number of key questions were 

rigorously considered:

• Is there still a place for a very small health fund with 

a limited capital base?

• Will we be able to offer members cost effective, 

quality services?

• Can the services we offer be improved if delivered 

by other organisations?

It would have been an easy option for the Board not to 

address these key questions and not make decisions 

to secure the long term future of TFSL. 

The Board deserves to be commended for considering 

these critical questions in relation to the future of 

TFSL. The conclusion the Board has reached will see 

us exiting from the delivery of private health insurance, 

dental and aged care services. 

We acknowledge that the decision taken by the Board 

is not to be interpreted in any way as a negative 

refl ection on the management and staff of these 

services. We have had great management and staff 

that have operated against tremendous odds for many 

years. Their efforts have been refl ected in the high level 

of interest we have received for the purchase of Park 

Hill Gardens, Dental on Swan and Transport Health.

The process to select appropriate new owners of Park 

Hill Gardens, Dental on Swan and Transport Health 

has been a rigorous process that has at all times 

had the best interests of shareholders of paramount 

importance.

We are all very much focused on the businesses that 

we are retaining particularly the Mornington Retirement

Village; retirement living is a key component of the 

future strategy of TFSL. We are excited about the

strategic partnership we have developed with 

mecwacare, which we see as a validation of the model 

TFSL has pioneered combining retirement and aged 

care on the one site. We see this model as appealing 

to older Australians who want to have security and 

medical care incorporated in their future living needs.

The future of TFSL has now been secured and 2015 

will present its own set of challenges that the Board 

and management look forward to tackling. 

2014 has heralded a signifi cant change at TFSL. In April the 

membership took the historic decision to demutualise and 

transfer the structure of the organisation to that of a public 

company owned by shareholders.
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Martyn 

Pickersgill

John 

Coulson

Board of Directors 

Chairman

Non-Executive Director

Martyn has been involved in health insurance both 

at ANA (now Australian unity) and at IOOF, where 

he was managing Director for 14 years prior to 

joining the board of TFSL. He has also been involved 

in retirement village operation and management, 

as managing Director of IOOF Community Villages 

Friendly Society.

As a self-employed management consultant for 

the past 15 years, Martyn consults to small and 

medium-sized companies, mainly dealing with 

business strategy and risk controls. During the last 

15 years, he has also run the industry association for 

friendly societies and managed a friendly society that 

owned and operated 12 retail pharmacies. Martyn 

is a qualifi ed accountant and has been involved in 

member-based organisations since 1976.

Deputy Chairman

Non-Executive Director

John is a self-employed management consultant 

who mainly works on strategic planning projects 

for companies, not-for-profi t organisations and 

government agencies. This experience has included 

undertaking business improvement projects for a 

number of member-based organisations.

In his Director role on a number of not-for-profi t and 

private sector boards, John has guided the preparation 

of marketing plans, IT development strategies and 

risk management system enhancements.

John has a long-standing involvement with the 

transport sector – commencing in a strategic 

planning role at the then M&MTB and fi nishing as 

the Finance Group Manager of the Metropolitan 

Transit Authority of Victoria.

In recent years, John has been partner in charge of 

management consulting divisions in several mid-tier 

chartered accounting fi rms, most recently during 

a ten year period at HLB Mann Judd chartered 

accountants.
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Phil 

Altieri

Above: The Board in front of TFSL head offi ce.

Non-Executive Director

Through his position as Assistant National Secretary 

of the Rail Tram and Bus Union – Victorian Branch, 

Phil provides the Board with insight into the inner 

workings of the transport Industry, particularly 

corporate strategy and policy formulation, 

infrastructure requirements, employment relations 

and occupational health and safety protocols. He has 

also held advisory roles on national transport issues 

to various levels of Government.

Phil has been a Director of TFSL since August 2008 

and presently serves as a member of the Building 

and Property Development Committee.

Phil has been employed in the public transport 

system for 35 years, in various roles and has worked 

at all tram depots across Melbourne’s tram system.
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Philip 

Lovel AM

Board of Directors continued

Non-Executive Director

A lifelong member of the society, John brings a 

wealth of experience through his engineering roles 

in the food and pharmaceutical industries involving 

project management, maintenance and facility 

management.

John is currently employed by a leading 

pharmaceutical company in a capital project 

management role and is familiar with working 

in a highly regulated industry involving complex 

processes and high tech equipment. He has 

managed many large scale multi-million dollar 

projects through to successful completion.

John has been an active member of the Building 

and Property Committee where his building industry 

knowledge and experience has been a valued asset 

during the design and construction of The Mews.

Non-Executive Director

Philip has been involved with the transport industry 

his entire working life. For the past 26 years he 

was the CEO of the Victorian Transport Association 

(VTA), only recently retiring and taking a temporary 

position as executive Director. The VTA is the leading 

multi-modal freight and logistics organisation in 

Australia. It is funded by its members and represents 

the freight and logistics industry in all freight issues.

With many senior positions on industry and 

Government boards and associations including 

TWUSUPER Fund, VicRoads Advisory Board, Roads 

Australia and the Australian Road Transport Industrial 

Organisation, Philip brings to the Board of TFSL a 

vast knowledge of the Transport Industry.

In 2007 Philip was awarded membership in 

the General Division of the Order of Australia in 

recognition of his work in the Transport Industry.

John 

Giraud
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Nick 

Madden

Geoff

Scully

Non-Executive Director

Employed for over 30 years by Ansett Transport 

Industries, culminating as fi nance manager for Ansett

Pioneer, Nick has accumulated vast experience in 

the Transport Industry primarily in management, 

operational analysis, fi nance, accounting and quality 

assurance.

During a further period of over 10 years as a 

self-employed management and accounting 

consultant, Nick has installed quality assurance 

systems in a number of Australia’s leading transport 

companies including Seafast and Comet. He also 

provides accounting and managerial services to 

diverse clients in semi-government and health 

services industries in addition to specialised 

accounting for self-managed superannuation funds.

Non-Executive Director

Geoff Scully is also a lifelong member and former 

employee of the Company. He joined the Board in 

2000, bringing with him 40 years of experience 

in health insurance, public & private hospital 

administration & appointments to several national 

health care associations. Geoff is a past president of 

the Australasian Transplant Coordinators Association 

and a former member of the Australian Kidney 

Foundation. Geoff coordinated organ transplantation 

in Victoria & Tasmania for sixteen years and he was 

involved in the production of national organ retrieval 

intensive care & operating theatre guide lines, public 

education via the production of Community Service 

Announcements and a National School Education 

Program for Australian & New Zealand secondary 

students.
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Demutualisation of TFSL

For over 125 years TFSL has had a proud heritage of 

looking after the needs of its members. Demutualisation 

involved signifi cant organisational and governance 

change which set the foundation for TFSL’s continued 

growth and success into the future. 

The basic objective of the demutualisation of TFSL 

has seen the not for profi t friendly society become a 

for-profi t public company and its members are now 

shareholders of the company. 

TFSL CEO Derek Cafferty is confi dent that the 

demutualisation is in the best interests of the 

membership as a whole and stated ‘the management 

at TFSL has worked closely with the Board of Directors 

to achieve this change which is of great benefi t to all 

members. It is pleasing to have such a high voter turnout 

which has validated all the work to demutualise’.

Members were asked to vote on four special resolutions 

at the EGM all of which were overwhelmingly endorsed. 

The proposal for demutualisation was passed and 

became effective 30 June 2014 at which time eligible 

members were issued with an allocation of shares in 

the company.

Chairman Martyn Pickersgill was thrilled with the 

outcome stating ‘I applaud TFSL members in being 

courageous and taking this momentous step. 

A signifi cant trait of TFSL has been that it doesn’t take 

backward steps, which has again been demonstrated 

today. It was a big decision to take this step as TFSL 

has a proud heritage of service provision and looking 

after the needs of its members over 125 years. 

We saw, however, that members could never share 

in the success of TFSL under its current structure. 

Our decision to go down this path was based on being 

able to deliver value to members in the form of shares 

which can be sold for value and to facilitate business 

growth through future share capital raising’.

On 2 April 2014, TFSL held an Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of its 

Members, to vote on a proposal to demutualise the Society. 

“I applaud TFSL members 

in being courageous and 

taking this momentous 

step.” Martyn Pickersgill, TFSL Chairman
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Transport Health 
Tracy Palmer General Manager

Dental on Swan 
Dr. Naranjan Thomas

It has been a year of consolidation 

for all of us at Dental on Swan as 

we have strived to maintain the 

high standards of care for all our 

clients. It is our intention that 

Dental on Swan will use this time 

to grow our patient base as well 

as ensuring the best quality of 

care for members.  

We have welcomed back Dr Cathryn Madden who 

has returned from maternity leave on a part time 

basis much to the appreciation of her regular patients. 

Dental on Swan has also increased its online presence 

with a new revamped web page. The new Dental on 

Swan web page (www.dentalonswan.com.au) offers 

not only information about the dental clinic, but also 

gives clients the opportunity to get to know the staff, 

read up on commonly asked oral health questions and 

request dental appointments directly. We believe that 

by increasing our accessibility members of the local 

community will fi nd it easier to connect with Dental on 

Swan which will lead to a growth in our client base.

It is our hope that over the next year, with the new 

ownership of Primary Health Care Ltd, we will be able 

to call on their vast network and experience to improve 

our practice. Our goal is to maintain the highest 

standard of care for our clients by implementing new 

technologies to ensure their safety and comfort as well 

as offering a wider range of treatment options through 

continuous education and training of all staff members.

This year’s report provides an 

overview of the fi nancial position 

of Transport Health but more 

importantly, includes the exciting 

news of a transfer of ownership. 

The past year has again refl ected 

the evolving change in the private 

health insurance sector and the 

introduction of more regulatory changes including a 

recent announcement by the federal government. In 

the next twelve months our regulator PHIAC will be 

merged with APRA. Changes in regulation are likely to 

bring more challenges to health funds going forward 

together with the ongoing costs of compliance.

Once again, staff at Transport Health has worked 

diligently to improve our online services to members. 

The Transport Health website now offers a secure 

online member service through a dedicated member 

portal which is called the Transport Hub.

Our growth over the past year was 4.3% and continues 

to be above the industry average. Our lapse rates 

continue to be of concern and the team have been 

working on retention as a priority over the past year. 

This year the Health Fund paid over 12 million dollars 

in claims towards the wellbeing of our members.

With the regulatory and industry changes currently 

impacting on the private health insurance industry, 

the staff at Transport Health are very excited by the 

news of the recent sale of the health fund to Primary 

Health Care Ltd, a leading health professional provider 

in medical and ancillary services to the broader 

community Australia-wide

The Transport Health team congratulates the Board 

of TSFL for recognising the importance of stability 

for Transport Health and securing an owner that 

will continue the legacy of personal service that 

our members have become accustomed to whilst 

acknowledging the important history of the fund as it 

takes Transport Health into the future.
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Fifteen years is a great testament to the hard work and 

commitment of our staff ensuring Park Hill Gardens 

remains a vibrant, inclusive service for its residents 

and families.

Park Hill Gardens continues to operate at full occupancy 

with a healthy waiting list. The four private respite beds 

have also had a very high occupancy this year.

Our residents have enjoyed many activities such as 

BBQs, concerts, bingo, Master Chef cooking classes 

and an Armchair Cruise with many ports of call and 

foods to match the country. Our captain sits by the 

fi replace with his hat and pipe! The Men’s Group and 

our garden club have been well attended as well as 

Tai Chi, rosary and church groups and reading, exercise 

and walking groups.

Our kitchen staff has been thrilled with another bumper 

crop of fresh herbs and vegetables that the garden 

club have produced this year as there’s nothing better 

than fresh ingredients in our meals to give it that home 

cooked fl avour.

Park Hill Gardens is fortunate to have loyal, dedicated 

and compassionate staff with many staff up to 10 – 

20 years of service. This is recognised in our general 

community, hence our wonderful reputation and long 

waiting list is testament to this. It is gratifying to note 

that we are well recognised throughout the medical 

profession as we strive for continuous improvement 

and excellence is all areas of the community.

With over 55 years of experience in the provision of 

care to older people and people with disabilities we are 

more than confi dent that mecwacare will continue our 

legacy of high quality service to our residents.

Park Hill Gardens
Aged Care Facility
Ro Jackman

We are very pleased to celebrate our 

15th year of service at Park Hill Gardens 

in July this year.
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The Village at Mornington
Joe Ziino

The pathway that borders the lake provides residents 

with an excellent walking track. The lake is a stunning 

vista for residents dining in the restaurant, relaxing 

in the lounge or enjoying a barbeque on the edges of 

the lawns.

Our serviced apartments continue to be very popular 

and we have commenced a new initiative for 

prospective residents. We have a “Try before You Buy” 

option where eligible retirees can live in a fully furnished 

apartment for a trial period. They can sample the range 

of meals in our restaurant, enjoy the activities, meet 

our friendly residents and has proven to be a wonderful 

way to introduce people to the retirement lifestyle.

TFSL recently asked residents and staff to participate 

in a survey to determine the improvements for the 

Clubhouse which resulted in some fantastic ideas 

for improvement and we look forward to a revamped 

Clubhouse in the very near future.

CLUBHOUSE RENOVATIONS

The Clubhouse is considered the jewel in the Village 

crown at the Mornington as it remains a popular hub 

for a range of activities and events enjoyed by our 

residents. The popularity of the Clubhouse prompted 

TFSL to conduct a review of the facilities and services 

and a critical review of the its current space limitations.  

TFSL asked the residents to participate in focus group 

discussions for them to express their views on the 

facilities and services of the Clubhouse. 

The focus groups were a great success as residents 

were enthusiastic to share their views on the Clubhouse 

which also demonstrated a strong community that 

enjoys the Clubhouse and all it offers.

Residents were vocal about the management of space 

in the Clubhouse and suggested renovations that were 

cosmetic in nature such as an update to painting, 

window dressings and furniture. In addition to this; 

a popular suggestion was an extension of the 

Clubhouse lounge room towards to the lake. To this 

end, TFSL engaged the services of Thomson Adsett 

Architects to develop some conceptual drawings which 

were presented to the residents at the annual Open 

Day at the Village.

Residents were delighted with the concepts that were 

on display at the Open Day as many discussed their 

views on design and placement with their families and 

staff from TFSL.

A fi nal design has been selected for the Clubhouse 

renovation.

Our fantastic lake continues 

to provide us with a fantastic 

setting for residents, friends 

and relatives to enjoy. 

for improvement and

Clubhouse in the very
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Seabird Restaurant
Sarah Callanan

Residents enjoy the seasonal vegetables and the 

kitchen team feel inspired when cooking with fresh 

produce.

Seabird has continued with the highly successful 

monthly themed dinner events and the Sunday roasts 

are always a popular evening in the Clubhouse. Seabird 

Manager Sarah Callanan and the team continue to 

produce a varied menu for residents and with Sarah’s 

guidance; the team are always encouraged to try 

new dishes that the residents might enjoy. Seabird 

is equipped to manage special events or festive 

occasions that our residents may be celebrating which 

residents take great pride in.

This year Seabird Restaurant 

has continued to create healthy 

nutritious meals using fresh 

vegetables and herbs grown by 

the Garden Club. 
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Directors’ Report
Directors

The directors present their report, together with the fi nancial statements on the consolidated entity (referred hereafter as the “Consolidated entity”) 

consisting of Transport Friendly Society Ltd – TFSL (referred hereafter as the “Company” or “Parent entity”) and the entities it controlled for the year 

ended 30 June 2014. The following persons were directors of the company during the whole of the fi nancial year and up until the date of this report 

unless otherwise stated:

Mr Phillip S. Altieri

Mr John P. Coulson

Mr John A. Giraud

Mr Philip N. Lovel AM

Mr Nicholas B. Madden

Mr Martyn R. Pickersgill

Mr Geoffrey W. Scully

Chief Executive Offi cer

Mr Derek Cafferty

Company Secretary

Mr Derek Cafferty

Principal Activities

During the year the principal continuing activities of the Consolidated entity consisted of:

a. Health Insurance Fund

b. Dental Clinic

c. Aged Care Facility (Nursing Home and Hostel Accommodation)

d. Retirement Village.

Dividends

The Constitution of the company as of 30 June 2014 precludes the payment of dividends to members.

Short and Long-Term Objectives and Strategy

The company’s short and long-term objectives is to develop profi table subsidiary businesses which improve the overall fi nancial position of the group; and

The company’s strategy for achieving these objectives includes:

• Growing and developing the revenue and cash generating activities of its existing and future businesses;

• Bringing excellence to every aspect of its operations; 

• improving effi ciency and eliminating waste; and

• Developing a distinctive culture that guides its decisions that differentiates it from its competitors.

Review of Operations and Activities

The Consolidated entity has achieved a surplus after tax of $2,077,065 (2013: $3,795,864).

The strategic plans of the Consolidated entity are reviewed regularly and the directors continue to seek improved fi nancial returns on assets invested 

for the benefi t of shareholders. Considering each activity:

(a)  Health Fund - Transport Health Pty Ltd (“Transport Health”)

During the year the principal activities of the company included operating a private health insurer under the Private Health Insurance Act 2007.

Transport Health Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of TFSL has concluded the year with a surplus of $1,339,811 (2013 surplus: $1,429,248).

During the year Transport Health paid Member Benefi ts of $12,928,040 (2013: $11,901,420).

The parent company, TFSL, charged a management fee of $1,621,017 (2013: $1,349,372) to Transport Health to recover administration expenses, 

including wages and salaries, incurred for the operating cost of the Health Insurance Fund. 
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(b) Dental Clinic - Dental on Swan

Dental on Swan provided a great service to Members and was open to non-Member patients as well. 

The clinic incurred a defi cit before tax of $(211,725) (2013: surplus before tax of $106,420).

(c)  The Mornington Retirement Village - incorporating Shearwater Serviced Apartments (“Village”)

The Village and serviced apartments continued to have high occupancy rates. The Mornington Retirement Village contributed a surplus before tax of 

$2,312,694 (2013: surplus before tax of $1,712,429) in respect to the independent living units business. Shearwater Serviced Apartments contributed 

a surplus before tax of $87,842 (2013: surplus before tax of $846,015).

(d)  Aged & Hostel Accommodation - Park Hill Gardens Aged Care Facility Pty Ltd

Conditions for operators of aged care facilities continue to be tough with residents entering facilities being much older and frailer. The problem of 

inadequate Commonwealth Government funding continues as the major issue for operators of aged care facilities. 

This year Park Hill Gardens incurred a defi cit before tax of $(122,155) (2013: surplus before tax $6,926).

Information on Directors

Director Qualifi cations Experience Special Responsibilities

P. S. Altieri Non-executive director for 6 years Chairman of Building & Property Development Committee; Member of 

Constitution, Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

J. P. Coulson B.Econ, MBA, CPA Non-executive director for 6 years Deputy Chairman of the Board; Deputy Chairman of Audit Committee; 

Member of Constitution, Nomination & Remuneration Committee

J. A. Giraud Dip. Mech. Eng. Non-executive director for 4 years Member of Building and Property Development Committee

P. N. Lovel AM Dip. Civil Eng., MBA 

Marketing/Operations

Non-executive director for 2 years Director

N. B. Madden FCPA Non-executive director for 12 years Chairman of Audit & Compliance Committee; Member of Constitution 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

M. R. Pickersgill B. Comm, CPA, MAICD Non-executive director for 7 years Chairman of the Board; Chairman Constitution, Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee; Member of the Audit Committee 

G. W. Scully Adv. Dip HR Mgt Non-executive director for 13 years Member of Constitution, Nomination & Remuneration Committee; 

Member of Building & Property Development Committee

All the above named directors are considered by the Board to constitute independent directors.

Meetings of Directors

The numbers of meetings of the company’s Board of Directors and each Board Committee held during the year ended 30 June 2014, and the numbers 

of meetings attended by each director were:

Director Board Committee

Audit
Building & Property 

Development
Constitution, Nomination 

& Remuneration

A B A B A B A B

P. S. Altieri 13 13 ** ** 3 4 1 1

J. P. Coulson 13 13 7 7 ** ** 1 1

J. A. Giraud 11 13 ** ** 4 4 ** **

P. N. Lovel 13 13 ** ** ** ** ** **

N. B. Madden 12 13 5 7 ** ** 1 1

M. R. Pickersgill 12 13 6 7 ** ** 1 1

G. S. Scully 12 13 ** ** 4 4 1 1

A = Number of meetings attended

B = Number of meetings held during the time the director held offi ce or was a member of the Committee during the year

** = Not a Member of the relevant Committee
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Members’ Guarantee 

At 30 June 2014 the company’s constitution, each member is liable to contribute $1 in the event that the company is wound up. The total amount as 

at 30 June 2014 that each member would contribute is $4,818. This requirement was removed from 1 July 2014; refer to matters subsequent to the 

end of the fi nancial year below.

Matters Subsequent to the end of the Financial Year 

In April 2014, the members of TFSL voted to demutualise TFSL and issue shares to eligible members on or around 1 July 2014.  As a result TFSL issued 

18,591,500 shares to eligible members on 1 July 2014. As the shareholders verify their holdings these shares will be recorded as issued shares of 

TFSL, the fi nal number may vary from the initial issue depending upon holdings verifi ed within the set timeframe. The expected fi nancial impact of this 

event is that the retained surplus of TFSL (the parent entity) will be transferred to the issued capital account.

On 1 July 2014 the status of the registered health fund Transport Health changed from not for profi t to for profi t. At the date of this report no reliable  

estimate of the fi nancial impact of the change can be made.

On 18 September 2014 TFSL exchanged contracts for the sale of Park Hill Gardens Aged Care Facility, business and freehold. The sale is subject to the 

transfer being approved by the Department of Social Services, which is considered will be granted within the ordinary course of business. The assets 

and liabilities of the business impacted by the sale have been classifi ed as held of sale in these fi nancial statements, with the details provided in note 

13 (c) to the fi nancial statements. 

On 18 September 2014 TFSL exchanged contracts for the sale of the shares in Transport Health Pty Ltd and the business of Dental on Swan. The sale 

is subject to the health fund being converted to an open access fund, which is considered achievable within the time prescribed in the contract. 

The assets and liabilities of the entity and business impacted by the sale have been classifi ed as held of sale in these fi nancial statements, with the 

details provided in note 13 (c) to the fi nancial statements. 

Other than the events described above there are no other matters or circumstance that has arisen since 30 June 2014 that has signifi cantly affected, 

or may signifi cantly affect

(a) The consolidated entity’s operations in future years; or

(b) The results of those operations; or

(c) The consolidated entity’s state of affairs in future fi nancial years.

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

Information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of operations have not been included in this 

report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity.

Environmental Regulations 

The operations of the consolidated entity are not subject to any particular or signifi cant environment regulations under a Commonwealth, State or 

Territory law.

Insurance of Offi cers

During the fi nancial year, the company paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the directors and executives of the company against a liability 

to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of liability and the amount of the 

premium.

Directors’ Report
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 62.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the directors

Mr Martyn R. Pickersgill    Mr Nicholas B. Madden
Director      Director

Melbourne 

Dated this 22nd day of September 2014
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TFSL and the Board are committed to achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of corporate governance. The relationship between the Board 

and senior management is important to the Group’s long term success. Day to day management of the Group’s affairs and the implementation of the 

corporate strategy and policy initiatives are formally delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive Offi cer.

The directors are responsible to the shareholders for the performance of the company in both the short and the longer term and seek to balance 

sometimes competing objectives in the best interests of the Group as a whole. Their focus is to enhance the interests of shareholders.

A description of the company’s main corporate governance practices is set out below. All these practices, unless otherwise stated, were in place for 

the entire year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

• The Board comprises seven non-executive directors. Non-executive directors bring a fresh perspective to the Board’s consideration of strategic, 

risk and performance matters and are best placed to exercise independent judgement and review and constructively challenge the performance 

of management

• In recognition of the importance of independent views and the Board’s role in supervising the activities of management, the chairman must be 

an independent non-executive director, the majority of the board must be independent of management and all directors are required to bring 

independent judgement to bear in their Board decision making

• The Chairman is elected by the full Board and meets regularly with the Chief Executive Offi cer

• The company will maintain a mix of directors on the Board from different backgrounds with complementary skills and experience

• The size of the Board is conducive to effective discussion and effi cient decision making

Responsibilities

The responsibilities of the Board include:

• Contributing to the development of and approving the corporate strategy

• Reviewing and approving business plans, the annual budget and fi nancial plans including available resources and major capital expenditure initiatives  

• Overseeing and monitoring 

– Organisational performance and the achievement of the Group’s strategic goals and objectives

– Progress of major capital expenditures and other signifi cant corporate projects including any acquisitions or divestments

• Monitoring fi nancial performance including approval of the annual fi nancial reports and liaison with the company’s auditors

• Appointment, performance assessment and, if necessary, removal of the Chief Executive Offi cer 

• Ratifying the appointment and/or removal of and contributing to the performance assessment for the members of the senior management team 

appointment

• Ensuring there are effective management processes in place and approving major corporate initiatives

• Enhancing and protecting the reputation of the organisation

• Ensuring the signifi cant risks facing the company, including those associated with its legal compliance obligations have been identifi ed and 

appropriate and adequate control, monitoring, accountability and reporting mechanisms are in place

• Reporting to Shareholders

Term of offi ce

The company’s Constitution specifi es that all directors (elected after 29 May 2008) must retire from offi ce no later than the annual general meeting of 

the company after which director’s term reaches 12 years.

Independent professional advice

Any director may take such independent legal, fi nancial or other advice as he/she considers necessary at TFSL’s expense provided the advice sought 

is in writing, is directly relevant to TFSL’s affairs and the Chairman’s consent is fi rst requested and obtained. The consent of the Chairman will not be 

withheld unreasonably.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of committees to assist in the execution of its duties and to allow detailed consideration of complex issues. Current 

committees of the Board are Audit Committee, Constitution, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Building & Property Development Committee. 

The committee structure and membership is reviewed on an annual basis. A policy of rotation of committee members applies.

Each of these committees has its own written charter setting out its role and responsibilities, composition, structure, membership requirements and the 

manner in which the committee is to operate. All of these charters are reviewed on an annual basis. All matters determined by committees are submitted 

to the full Board as recommendations for Board decision.

Corporate Governance Statement
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Minutes of the committee meetings are tabled at the immediately subsequent Board meetings. Additional requirements for specifi c reporting by the 

committees to the Board are addressed in the charter of the individual committees.

Constitution, Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The committee consists of fi ve non-executive directors:

Martyn R. Pickersgill (Chairman) 

John P. Coulson

Phillip S. Altieri

Nicholas B. Madden

Geoffrey W. Scully

The committee advises the Board on matters pertaining to the Constitution, nominations to fi ll casual vacancies on the Board, and remuneration policies 

and practices generally, and makes specifi c recommendations on the remuneration packages and other terms of employment for senior executives and 

directors. The committee takes advice from external remuneration experts on developments in remuneration and related matters.

Executive remuneration and other terms of employment are reviewed annually by the committee having regard to personal and corporate performance, 

contribution to long term growth, relevant comparative information and independent expert advice. As well as a base salary, remuneration packages 

include superannuation, retirement and termination entitlements, and fringe benefi ts (where applicable).

Audit Committee

The audit committee consists of three directors:

Nicholas B. Madden (Chairman)

John P. Coulson

Martyn R. Pickersgill

The committee has appropriate fi nancial expertise and all members have a working knowledge of the industries in which the company operates.

The main responsibilities of the committee are to:

• Review, assess and approve the annual reports for recommendation to the Board

• Assist the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal control environment and policies covering:

– Effectiveness and effi ciency of operations

– Reliability of fi nancial reporting

– Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

• Monitoring compliance with applicable laws and regulations

• Oversee the effective operation of the risk management framework

• Recommend to the Board the appointment, removal and remuneration of the external auditors, and review the terms of their engagement, the scope 

and quality of the audit and assess performance

• Consider the independence and competence of the external auditor on an ongoing basis

• Review and approve the level of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and ensure it does not adversely impact on auditor independence

• Review and monitor related party transactions and assess their propriety

• Report to the Board on matters relevant to the committee’s role and responsibilities

In fulfi lling its responsibilities, the audit committee:

• Receives regular reports from management and the external and internal auditors

• Meets with the external auditors at least twice a year or more frequently if necessary

• Reviews any signifi cant disagreements between the auditors and management, irrespective of whether they have been resolved

• Meets separately with the external auditors at least once a year without the presence of management

• Provides the external auditors with a clear line of direct communication at any time to either the Chairman of the Audit Committee or the Chairman 

of the Board

The committee has authority, within the scope of its responsibilities, to seek any information it requires from any employee or external party.
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Building and Property Development Committee

The committee consists of three directors:

Phillip S. Altieri (Chairman) 

John A. Giraud 

Geoffrey W. Scully

The committee assists the Board in fulfi lling corporate governance and oversight duties in relation to the company meeting properties obligations, and 

ensures that the company has a sound property management regime which incorporates ongoing control and review measures.

The committee reports quarterly to the Board.

The committee functions include assessing and reporting on development opportunities, oversight of contracts and project managers, oversight of 

construction budgets and costs, and supervision of agreed building programmes.

Risk Assessment and Management

The Board is responsible for ensuring there are adequate policies in relation to risk oversight and management, and internal control systems. Policies are 

designed to ensure strategic, operational, legal, reputation and fi nancial risks are identifi ed, assessed, addressed and monitored to enable achievement 

of the company’s business objectives.

Corporate Governance Statement
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes 2014 2013 

$ $

Revenue 6 4,910,506 4,416,893

Expenses

Employee benefi ts (2,244,039) (2,293,152)

Consultant and professional services (892,344) (249,807)

Depreciation and amortisation 7 (123,166) (119,139)

Information technology fees (59,911) (86,524)

Marketing (207,770) (85,342)

Other expenses (992,213) (416,494)

(4,519,443) (3,250,458)

Surplus before income tax expense 7 391,063 1,166,435

Income tax benefi t/(expense) 8 261,667 1,797,108

Net surplus from continuing operations 652,730 2,963,543

Discontinued operations

Surplus from discontinued operations 13 (b) 1,424,335 832,321

Surplus for the year 2,077,065 3,795,864

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassifi ed to profi t or loss

Revaluation of Land and buildings 24 (a) - 668,906

Items that may be reclassifi ed subsequently to profi t or loss

Net change in fair value of available for sale fi nancial assets 24 (a) 25,044 3,197

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 25,044 672,103

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,102,109 4,467,967

The above Statement of profi t or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Financial Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2014

Notes 2014 2013 

Current assets $ $

Cash and cash equivalents 9 5,656,216 12,057,866

Trade and other receivables 10 1,175,492 3,007,609 

Other fi nancial assets 14 2,970,000 3,500,000

Inventory 11 - 32,538

Other 12 154,661 204,886

9,956,369 18,802,899

Assets classifi ed as held for sale 13 (c) 22,525,512 -

Total current assets 32,481,881 18,802,899

Non-current assets

Receivables 10 12,732,300 11,255,266

Other fi nancial assets 14 3,667,592 9,725,318

Property, plant and equipment 15 3,427,303 11,264,874

Investment property 16 16,985,373 14,830,854

Intangible assets 18 39,717 30,048

Other - 100

Total non-current assets 36,852,285 47,106,460

Total assets 69,334,166 65,909,359

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 19 1,375,013 1,530,041

Interest bearing liabilities 20 4,051 10,825

Provisions 21 469,388 2,455,921

Other 22 9,184,650 22,219,422

11,033,102 26,216,209

Liabilities directly associated with assets classifi ed as held for sale 13 (c) 16,884,012 -

Total current liabilities 27,917,114 26,216,209

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 20 13,430 70,459

Deferred tax liabilities 23 3,797,756 3,859,349

Provisions 21 19,258 278,843

Total non-current liabilities 3,830,444 4,208,651

Total liabilities 31,747,558 30,424,860

Net assets 37,586,608 35,484,499

Equity

Reserves 4,529,073 4,504,029

Retained surpluses 33,057,535 30,980,470

Total equity  37,586,608 35,484,499

The above Statement of fi nancial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Financial Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Notes 2014 2013

Retained 
Surpluses

$
Reserves

$
Total

$

Retained 
Surpluses

$
Reserves

$
Total

$

Balance at beginning of the year 30,980,470 4,504,029 35,484,499 27,184,606 3,831,926 31,016,532

Comprehensive income for the year

Surplus for the year 24 (b) 2,077,065 - 2,077,065 3,795,864 - 3,795,864

Other comprehensive income 24 (a) - 25,044 25,044 - 672,103 672,103

Total comprehensive income for  the year 2,077,065 25,044 2,102,109 3,795,864 672,103 4,467,967

Balance at the end of the year 24 33,057,535 4,529,073 37,586,608 30,980,470 4,504,029 35,484,499

The above Statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2014

Infl ows/Outfl ows

Notes 2014 2013

$  $

Cash fl ows from operating activities

Receipts from members, rental and customers (inclusive of goods and services tax) 25,109,338 23,911,445

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and service tax) (25,718,844) (24,277,903)

Interest and dividends received 1,153,921 1,244,140

Net cash infl ow from operating activities* 31 544,415 877,682

Cash fl ows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangibles (172,265) (167,011)

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 1,990 -

Payments for building under construction (469,867) (3,403,441)

Redemption of other fi nancial assets 3,780,626 8,306,321

Investments in other fi nancial assets (8,909,442) (7,050,076)

Proceeds from sale of investments in listed fi nancial instruments 95,535 -

Improvements to investments - (62,430)

Net cash outfl ow from investing activities* (5,673,423) (2,376,637)

Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities

Accommodation bond receipts 3,785,654 5,365,723

Accommodation bond repayments (4,060,772) (2,683,575)

Net movement in Loans from residents - serviced apartments 1,016,650 375,000

Finance lease repayments (19,446) (4,841)

Net cash infl ow from fi nancing activities* 722,086 3,052,307

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents held (4,406,922) 1,553,352

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,057,866 10,504,514

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 7,650,944 12,057,866

*  Refer to Note 13 (b) for details of the amounts related to the discontinued operations, which are included in the above the net cash infl ows/(outfl ows) from operating, investing and 

fi nancing activities.

The above Statement of cash fl ows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Financial Report
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Note 1. Statement of Signifi cant Accounting Policies
The fi nancial statements include the consolidated fi nancial statements and notes of Transport Friendly Society Ltd (‘the Company’) and controlled 

entities (‘the Consolidated entity’). 

(a) Basis of preparation
The fi nancial statements are general purpose fi nancial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 

(including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in fi nancial statements containing relevant and 

reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the fi nancial statements 

and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the fi nancial 

statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

The fi nancial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modifi ed, where applicable, by the measurement 

at fair value of selected non-current assets, fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities and claims liabilities.

New and amended standards adopted by the entity
The Consolidated entity has applied the following standards and amendments for the fi rst time in their annual reporting period commencing 1 July 2013: 

i. AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13; and 

ii. AASB 119 Employee Benefi ts (September 2011) and AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 

(September 2011).

i. Change in accounting policy: Fair value measurement

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise defi nition of fair value and a single source 

of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for all AASs. 

AASB 13 defi nes fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or 

most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether 

that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 

In addition, in accordance with AASB 13 all assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the fi nancial statements are categorised 

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

AASB 13 requires prospective application from 1 July 2013. In addition, specifi c transitional provisions were given to entities such that they need not 

apply the disclosure requirements set out in the Standard in comparative information provided for periods before the initial application of the Standard. 

In accordance with these transitional provisions, the Consolidated entity has not made any new disclosures required by AASB 13 for the 2013 

comparative period.

Other than the additional disclosures included in Note 17, the application of AASB 13 does not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in 

the consolidated fi nancial statements.

ii. Change in accounting policy: employee benefi ts

The adoption of the revised AASB 119 Employee Benefi ts resulted in a change to the Consolidated entity’s accounting  policy for the annual leave 

obligations. As the Consolidated entity does not expect all annual leave to be taken within 12 months of the respective service being provided, annual 

leave obligations are now classifi ed entirely as a long-term employee benefi t for measurement purposes. This classifi cation results in measuring the 

entire obligation on a discounted basis. The impact of this change was insignifi cant since the majority of the leave is still expected to be taken within 

a short period after the end of the current year.

However, as the Consolidated entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of these liabilities for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period, the entire annual leave liability is classifi ed for presentation purposes as a current liability in the balance sheet (refer to Note 1 (s)).

(b) Principles of consolidation
The consolidated fi nancial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all entities controlled by Transport Friendly Society Ltd (‘the Company’) as 

at 30 June 2014 and 2013 respectively; and the results of all controlled entities for the fi nancial years then ended. Transport Friendly Society Ltd and its 

controlled entities together are referred to in this fi nancial report as the Consolidated entity. The effects of all transactions and balances and unrealised 

gains on transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are eliminated in full.

Where a controlled entity has entered or left the economic entity during the year, its operating results have been included from the date control was 

obtained or until the date control ceased.

(c) Operating segments
Operating segments are presented using the ‘management approach’, where the information presented is on the same basis as the internal reports 

provided to the Board. The Board is responsible for the allocation of resources to operating segments and assessing their performance.

(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefi t will fl ow to the consolidated entity and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Notes to Financial Statements
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(d) Revenue recognition (continued)

i. Health insurance premium revenue

Revenue consists of premiums received from members, inclusive of the Government rebate. Revenue is recognised when earned over the period of the 

membership and is recognised from the attachment date when it can be reliably estimated.

Premium revenue relating to future fi nancial periods is classifi ed as premiums in advance and is measured in accordance with the pattern of the 

incidence of risk expected over the term of the insurance cover.

The proportion of premium received or receivable not earned in the statement of comprehensive income at the reporting date is recognised in the 

statement of fi nancial position as an unearned premium liability.

ii. Interest received

Interest is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method.

iii. Aged care revenue

Income and government subsidies for the provision of aged care facilities and related services are recognised as the services are provided.

iv. Other revenue

Revenue is recognised when the services have been provided to the customer.

v. Deferred management fees

a. The Mornington Retirement Village Independent Living Units

Deferred management fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the contract based upon the expected length of stay and estimates 

of capital growth since the resident fi rst occupied the unit. The income is discounted to its present value based upon an average expected tenancy term 

of 11.2 years and a discount rate of 3.5% (2013: 3.8%). 

Historical contracts of sale provide that 6 per cent of the initial purchase price is a management fee for the fi rst twelve months of ownership, being 

payable to the company on resale of the property during that period. Thereafter, the management fee entitlement accrues from a rate of 3% of the future 

resale price, and increases by 1% per quarter, or part, to a maximum of 27.5%. 

For new contracts signed post November 2013, after the fi rst year the management fee entitlement accrues from a rate of 6.0% of the future resale 

price, and increases by 1.5% per quarter for the fi rst 3 quarters, then 1% for the remaining quarters, or part thereof, to a maximum of 27.5%.

b. Shearwater Serviced Apartments

Lease tenants at Shearwater Serviced Apartments advance an interest free loan amount to the company against which a deferred management 

fee is charged progressively during the term of the lease. Deferred management fees are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with 

the contract and the expected length of stay. The income is discounted to its present value based upon an average expected tenancy term of 

7 years and a discount rate of 3.8% (2013: 3.8%). For historical contracts the management fee rate in the fi rst year is 2% and increases by a further 3% 

per annum until reaching a maximum of 20% in the seventh year. For new contracts signed post November 2013, after the fi rst year the management 

fee entitlement accrues from a rate of 6.0% of the future resale price, and increases by 1.0% per quarter remaining quarters, or part thereof, to a 

maximum of 27%.

(e) Income tax
The income tax expense or benefi t for the year comprises the tax payable on the period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate 

adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised 

for prior periods, where applicable.

The activities of the company include a dental clinic which is exempt based upon the mutuality principle of taxation.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 

carrying amounts in the fi nancial statements. Deferred tax assets also result where amounts have been expensed but future tax deductions are 

available. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there 

is no effect on accounting or taxable profi t or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited 

in the statement of comprehensive income except where it relates to items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is 

adjusted directly against equity.

The carrying amount of recognised deferred tax assets are reviewed each reporting date. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that 

it is probable that future tax profi ts will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The future income tax benefi t relating to tax losses is not carried forward as an asset unless the benefi t is virtually certain of realisation. In assessing the 

realisable amount, allowance is made for tax losses not eligible to be carried forward under tax legislation relating to exempt income of the Health Fund.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 

deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same taxable authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable 

entity’s which intend to settle simultaneously.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash fl ows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits at call with fi nancial institutions and 

other liquid investments with short periods to maturity which are readily convertible to cash on hand and are subject to insignifi cant risk of changes in 

value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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(g) Trade and other receivables
Trade other receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable. These are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Recoverability of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are written off. A provision for doubtful debts 

is raised when some doubt as to collection exists.

(h) Inventories
Supplies and materials are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(i) Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings is carried at fair value. After initial recognition at cost, fair value is determined by periodic valuations by external independent valuers, 

less subsequent depreciation and impairment for buildings. The valuations are undertaken with suffi cient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount 

does not differ materially from that which would be determined using the fair value at year end. At the end of each year, the Directors update assess the 

fair value of each item of Land and buildings to ensure these still refl ect the fair value of them. Independent valuations are undertaken more frequently 

if there is a material change in the fair value relative to the carrying amount. 

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net depreciation at the date 

of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Increases 

in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to the revaluation surplus reserve in equity. Any revaluation decrements 

are initially taken to the Asset revaluation reserve to the extent of any previous revaluation surplus of the same asset. Thereafter the decrements are 

taken to profi t or loss.

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated on a diminishing value basis to write off the net cost or revalued amount of each item of property, plant and equipment 

(excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows:

Buildings  40-50 years

Plant and equipment 3-20 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefi t to the consolidated entity. Gains and 

losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profi t or loss. Any revaluation surplus reserve relating to the item disposed 

of is transferred directly to retained profi ts.

(j) Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires and assessment of 

whether the fulfi llment of the arrangement is dependent upon the use of a specifi c asset or assets under arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A distinction is made between fi nance leases, which effectively transfer from the lessor to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefi ts incidental to 

ownership of leased assets, an operating lease, under which the lessor effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefi ts.

Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability are established at the fair value of the lease assets, or if lower, the present value of minimum 

lease payments. Lease payments are allocated between the principal component of the lease liability and the fi nance costs.

Lease assets acquired under a fi nance lease are depreciated over the assets useful life or over the shorter of the assets useful life and the lease term 

if there is no reasonable certainty that the consolidated entity will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to profi t or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

(k) Investment property
Investment property represents Transport Friendly Society Limited’s investment in the Mornington Retirement Village, Shearwater Serviced Apartments 

and one independent living unit held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Costs incurred 

subject to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is possible that future economic benefi ts in excess of the originally assessed performance of the 

asset will fl ow to the entity.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, Investment property is carried at fair value determined by the directors or independent valuers, with changes in the 

fair value recognised in the profi t or loss in the period in which they arise. Investment property is not depreciated.

Revenue from the leasing of the investment property is recognised in the profi t or loss for the periods in which it is receivable, as this represents the 

pattern of service rendered through the provision of the properties.

(l) Intangible assets
Under A-IFRS, an item of computer software which is not an integral part to the computer is classifi ed as an intangible asset. Intangible assets are 

carried at cost less depreciation and impairment loss, if applicable, (refer to Note 1 (m). Computer software held as intangible assets is amortised over 

the expected useful life of the software, estimated to be 3 years.

(m) Impairment of non-fi nancial assets
At each reporting date, management assesses the carrying values of the entities’ assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets 

have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 

in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expenses to the profi t or loss.
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(n) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the fi nancial year and which are unpaid. 

Due to their short term nature they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 

30 days of recognition.

(o)  Disposal groups held for sale and discontinued operations
Disposal groups are classifi ed as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through 

continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except 

for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefi ts, fi nancial assets and investment property that are carried at fair value and 

contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifi cally exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the disposal group to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for 

any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell a disposal group, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. 

A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the disposal group is recognised at the date of derecognition. 

Non-current assets that are a part of a disposal group are not depreciated or amortised while they are classifi ed as held for sale. Interest and other 

expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classifi ed as held for sale continue to be recognised. 

The assets and liabilities of a disposal group classifi ed as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets and liabilities in the Statement 

of fi nancial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classifi ed as held for sale and that represents a separate major 

line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or 

is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Statement of profi t or 

loss and other comprehensive income.

(p) Interest bearing liabilities
Loans are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash fl ows associated with servicing the debt. Interest is 

accrued over the period it becomes due and is recorded as part of other creditors.

(q) Provisions

i. Outstanding claims

The provision for outstanding claims provides for claims received but not assessed and claims incurred but not received, estimated risk equalisation 

liability related to outstanding claims and estimated claims handling costs. The provision for outstanding claims is measured as the central estimate 

plus a risk margin which increases the overall probability of adequacy from 50% to 75%. No discounting is applied to the provision due to the generally 

short time period between claim incidence and settlement.

In determining the outstanding claims liability, the Health Fund has adopted risk margins which are in line with those recommended for regulatory 

purposes. 

ii. Other provisions

Other provisions are recognised when the Health Fund has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an 

outfl ow of economic benefi ts will result and that outfl ow can be reliably measured.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation.

(r) Other current liabilities

i. Premiums in advance

Refer to note 1(d). These liabilities represent premiums paid in advance.

ii. Resident loans

Retirement village residents, upon entering certain accommodation types, provide loan to the company, from which deferred management fees are 

deducted in respect of the provision of certain services and facilities. The actual amount repayable upon departure from the accommodation is 

determined by the terms of the existing license agreements. When a resident vacates the accommodation these loan payments are repayable on the 

shorter of a period of 6 months and 5 years, depending upon the contract, or 14 days within a new resident occupying the accommodation they are 

treated as current liabilities and amortised using the effective interest rate method even though they relate to occupancy of the investment properties 

which are non-current assets.

iii. Resident bonds

Accommodation bonds are non-interest bearing deposits paid by the resident of the residential aged care facility as payment for a place in the 

residential aged care facility. These deposits are liabilities which fall due and are payable when the resident leaves the facility. The bonds are recorded 

at an amount equal to the proceeds received, net of retention and any other amounts deducted from the bond at the election of the bondholder. The 

bonds have all been treated as current liabilities even though generally not all residents leave the facility within 1 year of entry.

(s) Employee benefi ts

i. Wages and salaries, Annual leave and Long service leave

Provision is made for benefi ts accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave when it is probable that 

settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Provisions made in respect of employee benefi ts are measured based on an assessment of the existing benefi ts to determine the appropriate 

classifi cation under the defi nition of short term and long term benefi ts, placing emphasis on when the benefi t is expected to be settled.

Short term benefi ts provisions that are expected to be settled within 12 months are measured at their nominal values using the remuneration rate 

expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

Long term benefi ts provisions that are not expected to be settled within 12 months, and are measured as the present value of the estimated future cash 

outfl ows to be made by the Consolidated entity in respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date. Consideration is given to the expected 

future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields 

at the reporting date to estimate the future cash fl ows at a pre-tax rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time value of money. 

Regardless of the expected timing of settlement, provisions made in respect of employee benefi ts are classifi ed as a current liability unless there is 

an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case it would be classifi ed as a 

non-current liability. Provisions made for annual leave and unconditional long service leave are classifi ed as a current liability where the employee has 

a present entitlement to the benefi t. A non-current liability would include long service leave entitlements accrued for employees with less than 7 years 

of continuous service.

ii. Directors retirement benefi ts

The company has capped Non-Executive Director related expenses at $500,000 per annum. Liabilities for director retirement benefi ts have been 

accrued subject to the above capping. The directors have provided for the $274,060 in respect of directors’ retirement benefi ts at the date of closure.

On 29 August 2011 the Directors resolved to close the Directors Retirement Plan. The Provision balance represents the amount agreed by, those 

Directors to which the plan applied, as their retirement provision at that date. The balance has not been discounted.

iii. Superannuation contributions

Contributions are made by the company to an employee superannuation fund and are charged as expenses when incurred.

(t) Unearned premium liability
At balance date, the unearned premium liability is determined by combining the following:

Closed business - Against the advanced premiums provision there is an assessment of the expected future cash fl ows relating to the potential future 

claims in respect of the relevant insurance contracts, plus the predicted associated member service costs, claims handling costs, risk equalisation 

liabilities and including a risk margin. Any negative balance from these calculations is shown as a liability. The risk margin increases the overall 

probability of adequacy from 50% to 75% as required by directors.

Unclosed business - Against the earned portion of the unclosed business liability there is a similar assessment as above including the equivalent risk 

margin with any negative balance from these calculations shown as a liability.

Constructive obligations - The assessment of constructive obligations is determined by class of business, being a portfolio of contracts that are 

broadly similar and managed together as a single portfolio. There is an assessment of contractual obligations up to the assumed date of the next 

premium change with expected future relevant premium income for each class of business assessed against the expected future cash fl ows relating to 

potential future claims in respect of the relevant class plus the predicted claims handling costs and risk equalisation liabilities including a risk margin. 

Any negative balance from these calculations is shown as a liability. The risk margin increases the overall probability of adequacy of the contractual 

obligations from 50% to 75% as required by directors.

(u) Risk equalisation fund contribution 
Under the provisions of the Private Health Insurance Act 2007, stipulated in the Private Health Insurance (Risk Equalisation Administration) Rules 2007, 

which became effective from 1 April 2007, all health insurers must participate in the Risk Equalisation Trust Fund (“RETF”). These rules charge a levy 

to all health insurers and share a proportion of the hospital claims on a sliding scale (by age) for all persons aged 55 years and over regardless of their 

length of stay in hospital. In certain circumstances, these rules also provide for a High Cost Claimants Pool. The amounts receivable from the RETF are 

determined by the Private Health Insurance Administration Council after the end of each calendar quarter. Estimated provisions for amounts payable 

and income receivable are recognised on an accruals basis.

(v) Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial instruments, incorporating fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities, are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument. Trade date accounting is adopted for fi nancial assets that are delivered within timeframes established by marketplace convention.

Financial instruments are classifi ed and measured as set out below.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash fl ows expires or the asset is transferred to another party whereby 

the entity no longer has any signifi cant continuing involvement in the risks and benefi ts associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised 

where the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying value of the fi nancial liability extinguished or 

transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed is recognised in 

profi t or loss.

Classifi cation and subsequent measurement

i. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are stated 

at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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(v) Financial instruments (continued)

ii. Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative fi nancial assets that have fi xed maturities and fi xed or determinable payments, and it is the consolidated 

entity’s intention to hold these investments to maturity. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

iii. Available-for-sale fi nancial assets

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets are non-derivative fi nancial assets that are either designated as such or that are not classifi ed in any of the other 

categories. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there is neither a fi xed maturity nor fi xed or determinable payments. 

iv. Financial liabilities

Non-derivative fi nancial liabilities (excluding fi nancial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

v. Impairment

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity assesses whether there is objective evidence that a fi nancial instrument has been impaired. In the case 

of available-for-sale fi nancial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of the instrument and/or a signifi cant decrease in fair value of the individual 

assets are considered to determine whether an impairment loss has arisen. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profi t or loss and 

other comprehensive income.

(w) Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the 

Australian Tax Offi ce. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. 

Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority is 

included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of fi nancial position.

Cash fl ows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash fl ows arising from investing or fi nancing activities which are recoverable from 

or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash fl ow.

(x) Finance costs
Finance costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the asset. All other fi nance costs are expensed in the period in which they are 

incurred, including:

• Interest on the bank overdraft

• Interest on short-term and long-term borrowings

• Interest on fi nance leases

• Unwinding of the discount on provisions

(y) Comparative fi gures
Comparative fi gures have been reclassifi ed to conform with changes in presentation for the current fi nancial year.

Note 2. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The key areas of signifi cant estimates and judgments and the methodologies used to determine key assumptions are set out below:

(a)  Uncertainty over estimate of outstanding claims provision
Provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and not settled at the balance date. The estimated cost of claims includes the direct expenses 

that are expected to be incurred in settling these claims and the risk equalisation liability that is expected to arise in relation to outstanding claims. All 

claims of material value are generally settled within twelve months of being incurred and no discount infl ation factors have been applied as a result.

The estimation of outstanding claims liabilities is based largely on the assumption that the past developments are an appropriate measure and predictor 

of the future. Claims processed up to and including 31 July 2014 were taken into consideration when determining the outstanding claims liability at 

30 June 2014.

Each type of business is examined separately taking into account historical trends in the development and incidence of the number of claims reported, 

number of claims fi nalised and the reported incurred costs. External actuarial review was conducted as at 31 July 2014 to provide an independent judgment.

The calculations of outstanding claims are in conformity with Australian Actuarial guideline GN 650 which requires the actuary to provide a central 

estimate and an estimation of the uncertainty around the central estimate. The central estimate of uncertainty enables the actuary to advise directors 

on the provision requirements that conform to the directors’ probability of adequacy directions. Uncertainties arise due to the simplifi cation of actuarial 

models on complex claims management, assumptions about claiming patterns based on past data and random variation that can drive the differences 

between actual and projected results.

(b) Unexpired risk reserve
The adequacy of the unearned premium liability is assessed against the present central estimate of the expected future cash fl ows relating to the 

potential future claims in respect of the relevant insurance contracts, plus the predicted associated member service and claim handling costs and an 

additional risk margin to refl ect the inherent uncertainty of the central estimate. If the unearned premium liability on the basis of the directors’ probability 

of adequacy directions is defi cient, then the resulting defi ciency is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Notes to Financial Statements
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The liability adequacy test is considered in two parts:

• The unearned business premium; which consists of the contribution in advance liability and the unearned unclosed business

• The contractual obligations through to the next rate change date

The assessment is carried out by business class, being the portfolio of contracts that are broadly similar and community rated and managed together. 

Each class of business is examined separately taking into account historical claiming trends and actuarial projections. External actuarial review was 

conducted as at 30 June 2014 to provide an independent judgment.

Note 3. Insurance Contracts - Risk Management Policies and Procedures
The Board of Directors determine the company’s overall risk assessment and approves the risk management strategies, policies and procedures to 

ensure that risks are identifi ed and managed appropriately.

The Audit Committee is to oversee the risk management systems, practices and procedures to ensure effectiveness of risk identifi cation and management 

and compliance with internal guidelines and external requirements. The objectives of the committee are as follows:

i. Ensure Risk Management is adopted throughout the Health Fund as a regular management practice,

ii. Ensure that all employees are trained in Risk Management and understand their role in the Risk Management process,

iii. Develop a culture of risk prevention throughout the organisation,

iv. Protect the Health Fund from loss, by reducing the likelihood and consequence of risks occurring, and

v. Assist the Health Fund achieving its strategic and operational goals and objectives.

Health insurance risks

The Health Fund’s insurance risks primarily involve the underwriting of risks and claim management in private health insurance.

New contracts are required to be accepted each year provided they meet the eligibility requirements and all policy renewals must be accepted. 

Guaranteed acceptance of insurance contracts provides risks such as potential claims experience being greater than assumed in the premium rates, 

random fl uctuations in claims and selective withdrawals whereby healthier members withdraw and less healthy members remain.

Generally with ageing of membership, the average health status decreases and their claims costs increase. Adverse changes in demographics of the 

membership base can thereby result in increased claiming experience. The existence of the private health insurance risk equalisation trust fund reduces 

the impact of claims for older members and members whose claims costs are above a threshold.

The business is also faced with the unlikely risk of extraordinary levels of claims arising from events such as natural disasters, terrorist activity and an 

outbreak of pandemic diseases.

There are several key polices in place to mitigate the risks of health insurance contracts. Management information systems that provide up-to-date and 

reliable data on claims risks and actuarial models based on historical data are used to calculate premiums and monitor claims patterns. Comprehensive 

fi nancial and operational reports are monitored against budget and actuarial projections. Strict claims management procedures and internal controls 

ensure the timely and correct payment of claims in accordance with policies.

Assets and liabilities are managed to attempt to match the expected pattern of claims payments with the maturity dates of assets backing health 

insurance liabilities. Regulatory solvency requirements include additional capital to provide for certain risk margins on liabilities and operational 

expenses, while capital adequacy requirements require different risk margins and a renewal option reserve.

The company provides health insurance to members residing in Australia. These members have been categorised into broad business classes; hospital 

only, ancillary only and combined hospital and ancillary products. These classifi cations are based on the similar risks contained within these segments.
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Note 4. New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods 
The AASB has issued new, revised and amended Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory application dates for future reporting periods and 

which the company has decided not to early adopt. A discussion of those future requirements and their impact on the Company is as follows:

Reference Title Summary Application date Expected Impact

(fi nancial years 
beginning)

AASB 9 Financial Instruments Replaces the requirements of AASB 139 for the classifi cation and 

measurement of fi nancial assets. This is the result of the fi rst part 

of Phase 1 of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39.

1 January 2017 Mandatory application date is 

deferred to 1 January 2017. 

Impact is still being assessed.

2009-11 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards arising 

from AASB 9

Amends AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 

121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 and 1038 and 

Interpretations 10 and 12 as a result of the issuance of AASB 9.

1 January 2015 The amendments are not 

expected to have signifi cant 

impact on the consolidated 

entity.

2010-7 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards arising 

from AASB 9 (December 2010)

Amends AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 

121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and 

Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127 for amendments to AASB 9 

in December 2010

1 January 2015 The amendments are not 

expected to have signifi cant 

impact on the consolidated 

entity.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial 

Statements

Replaces the requirements of AASB 127 and Interpretation 112 

pertaining to the principles to be applied in the preparation and 

presentation of consolidated fi nancial statements.

1 January 2014 The amendments are not 

expected to have signifi cant 

impact on the consolidated 

entity.

2011-7 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards arising 

from AASB 10, 11,12,127,128

Amends AASB 1,2,3,5,7,9,2009

11,101,107,112,118,121,124,132,133,136, 138,139,1023 & 

1038 and Interpretations 5,9,16 & 17 as a result of the issuance 

of AASB 10, 11, 12, 127 and 128

1 January 2014 The amendments are not 

expected to have signifi cant 

impact on the consolidated 

entity.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements Replaces the requirements of AASB 131 pertaining to the 

principles to be applied for fi nancial reporting by entities that have 

in interest in arrangements that are jointly controlled.

1 January 2014 No impact expected on the 

consolidated entity.

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in 

Other Entities

Replaces the disclosure requirements of AASB 127 and AASB 

131 pertaining to interests in other entities.

1 January 2014 Disclosure only.

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements Prescribes the accounting and disclosure requirements for 

investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates when 

an entity prepares separate fi nancial statements.

1 January 2014 No impact expected on the 

consolidated entity.

AASB 128 Investments in Associates 

and Joint Ventures

Prescribes the accounting for investments in associates and sets 

out the requirements for the application of the equity method 

when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures.

1 January 2014 No impact expected on the 

consolidated entity.

2012-3 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – 

Offsetting Financial Assets 

and Financial Liabilities

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address 

inconsistencies identifi ed in applying some of the offsetting 

criteria of AASB 132.

1 January 2014 The amendments are not 

expected to have signifi cant 

impact on the consolidated 

entity.

2013-3 Amendments to AASB 

136 –Recoverable Amount 

Disclosures for Non-Financial 

Assets

It amends the disclosure requirements in AASB 136 to include 

additional disclosures about the fair value measurement and 

discount rates when the recoverable amount of impaired assets is 

based on fair value less costs of disposal.

1 January 2014 Disclosure only.

2013-5 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – 

Investment Entities

This Standard amends AASB 10, AASB 12 and AASB 127 

to defi ne an investment entity and require that, with limited 

exceptions, an investment entity not consolidate its subsidiaries 

but to measure them at fair value through profi t or loss in 

accordance with AASB 9.

1 January 2014 No impact expected on the 

consolidated entity.

2013-9B Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – 

Conceptual Framework, 

Materiality and Financial

Part B of 2013-9 makes amendments to particular Australian 

Accounting Standards to delete references to AASB 1031, and 

makes various editorial corrections to Australian Accounting 

Standards.

1 January 2014 No impact expected on the 

consolidated entity.

2013-9C Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards – 

Conceptual Framework, 

Materiality and Financial 

Instruments

It amends AASB 9 to add Chapter 6 Hedge accounting, to 

permit “own credit risk” to be applied without applying the other 

requirements of AASB 9.

1 January 2015 No impact expected on the 

consolidated entity.

AASB 1031 Materiality Re-issuance of AASB 1031 1 January 2014 No impact expected on the 

consolidated entity.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Note 5.  
Segment 
Information Administration

Shearwater
Serviced

Apartments

Mornington
Retirement

Village
Old

Richmond
Maximeyes

Optical
Dental On

Swan

Park Hill
Gardens Aged 

Care Facility
Transport

Health Total

2014 –  Consolidated $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Profi t and Other 
Comprensive Income:

Revenues from external 

customers 8,581 1,214,723 1,445,905 1,181,299 5,229,115 16,399,766 25,479,389

Intersegment fees 3,396,764 - - - - - - - 3,396,764

Total revenue 3,405,345 1,214,723 1,445,905 - -  1,181,299 5,229,115 16,399,766 28,876,153

Other revenue 137,362 8,545 1,684,652  - 410,738 600,315 2,841,612

Total segment revenue 3 ,542,707 1,223,268 3,130,557 - - 1,181,299 5,639,853 17,000,081 31,717,765

Reconciliation of 
segment revenue to 
consolidated revenue:

Intersegment elimination (3,396,764) (3,396,764)

Revenue from 

discontinued operations (1,181,299) (5,229,115) (17,000,081) (23,410,495)

145,943 1,223,268 3,130,557 - - - 410,738 - 4,910,506

Segment results 

before tax (1,627,715) 87,842 2,312,694 - - (211,725) (122,156) 1,339,811 1,778,751

Intersegment elimination/

unallocated -  - - - - - - - - 

Results from discontinued 

operations (excluding 

income tax benefi t) (105,923) (311,965) (969,800) (1,387,688)

Income tax benefi t 

(note 8) 261,667 - - - - 261,667

Net surplus (1,366,048) 87,842 2,312,694 - - (317,648) (434,121) 370,011  652,730

Financial Position:

Segment assets 4,349,387 10,007,638 21,385,920 - - 87,968 19,012,660 16,559,596 71,403,169

Intersegment elimination 

(assets) (22,100) (147,000) - - - - (1,900,000) - (2,069,100)

Consolidated Assets 4,327,287 9,860,638 21,385,920 - - 87,968 17,112,660 16,559,596 69,334,069

Assets classifi ed as held 

for sale 87,968 7,877,948 14,559,596 22,525,512

Segment liabilities 9,132,213 6,608,396 3,356,171 (70,704) 876,514 (1,987,333) 11,842,633 4,890,750 34,648,640

Intersegment elimination 

(liabilities) (3,183,430) (147,000) (1,628,153) 70,704 - 2,105,773 - - (2,782,106)

Consolidated Liabilities 5,948,783 6,461,396 1,728,018 - 876,514 118,440 11,842,633 4,890,750 31,866,534

Liabilities directly 

associated with assets 

classifi ed as held for sale 118,441 11,874,821 4,890,750 16,884,012

Other Financial 
Information:

Acquisitions of property, 

plant & equipment and 

intangibles and other 

non-fi nancial assets 4,353 - 121,866 - - 18,173 27,873 - 172,265

Depreciation/amortisation 

expense 67,372 18,985 36,809 - - 9,146 172,585 - 304,897
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Note 5.  
Segment 
Information (cont) Administration

Shearwater
Serviced

Apartments

Mornington
Retirement

Village
Old

Richmond
Maximeyes

Optical
Dental On

Swan

Park Hill
Gardens Aged 

Care Facility
Transport

Health Total

2013 – Consolidated $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Profi t and Other 
Comprensive Income:

Revenues from external 

customers 3,887 1,167,189 1,879,945 - - 1,108,778 5,095,278 15,145,208 24,400,285

Intersegment fees 2,127,536 - - - - - - - 2,127,536

Total revenue 2,131,423 1,167,189 1,879,945 - -  1,108,778 5,095,278 15,145,208 26,527,821

Other revenue 611,397 745,482 (2,431) - - - 447,587 631,786 2,433,821

Total segment revenue 2,742,820 1,912,671 1,877,514 - - 1,108,778 5,542,865 15,776,994 28,961,642

Reconciliation of 
segment revenue to 
consolidated revenue:

Intersegment elimination (1,680,948) - - - - - - - (1,680,948)

Revenue from discontinued 

operations (436,164) - - - - (1,108,778) (5,542,865) (15,776,994) (22,864,801)

625,708 1,912,671 1,877,514 - - - - - 4,415,893

Segment results 

before tax (2,106,530) 846,015 1,712,428 - - 106,420 6,926 1,429,248 1,994,507

Intersegment elimination/ 

unallocated - - - - - - - - 6,326

Results from discontinued 

operations (excluding 

income tax benefi t) (106,420) 227,719 (955,698) (834,399)

Income tax (expense)/

benefi t (note 8) 1,797,109 - - - - - - - 1,797,109

Net surplus (309,421) 846,015  1,712,428 - - - 234,645 473,550 2,963,543

Financial Position:

Segment assets 5,615,557 9,790,585 18,911,367 70,704 - 135,308 16,812,086 14,666,553 66,002,160

Intersegment elimination 

(assets) (92,804) (92,804)

Consolidated Assets 5,522,753 9,790,585 18,911,367 70,704 - 135,308 16,812,086 14,666,553 65,909,356

Segment liabilities 2,050,471 6,479,184 2,921,882 - 876,514 (2,151,717) 11,796,571 4,351,224 26,324,129

Intersegment elimination 

(liabilities) 4 ,100,731 4,100,731

Consolidated Liabilities 6,151,202 6,479,184 2,921,882 - 876,514 ( 2,151,717) 11,796,571 4,351,224 30,424,860

Other Financial Information:

Acquisitions of property, 

plant & equipment, 

intangibles and other non-

current segment assets 108,339 6,337 43,138 - - 26,364 67,490 - 251,668

Depreciation/amortisation 

expense 79,038 20,973 19,128 - - 9,753 180,790 - 309,682

Notes to Financial Statements
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Consolidated

Note 6. Revenue Notes 2014 2013

$ $

Revenue from operations

Retirement village fees (note **) 1,445,905 1,879,945

Serviced apartments fees 1,214,723 1,167,189

Other 10,572 3,887

2,671,200 3,051,021

Revenue - Others

Interest 449,828 527,519

Rent 91,552 88,136

Dividends and distribution income 13,274 12,647

Gains on adjustment of investment property to fair value 16 1,684,652 737,570

2,239,306 1,365,872

Total Revenue and other income from continuing operations 4,910,506 4,416,893

Revenue and other income from discontinued operations 13 (b) 23,361,085 21,982,054

Total revenue for the fi nancial year 28,271,591 26,398,470

Note **  The retirement village fees include the deferred management fees. The calculation methodology as described in note 1 (d) (v) (a) notes that the fees include estimates of capital growth 

since the resident occupied the unit and their expected length of stay of residents. To determine the capital growth, the facilities were independently valued by Mr John Conrick of 

Colliers International Consultancy & Valuation Pty Limited as at 30 June 2014. This report also assisted with the determination of the expected length of stay of residents. The 

impact of the change in capital growth and expected length of stay decreased the Retirement Village fees and subsidies income for the year ended 30 June 2014 by $11,514 

(30 June 2013: increase of $826,595). For the year ended 30 June 2014, the directors reviewed the valuation and associated discount rates. The discount rates have been adjusted 

to refl ect the rate applicable at 30 June 2014 results in an additional $90,206 being included in the retirement village fees and subsidies income for the year ended 30 June 2014 

(30 June 2013:$599,627).

Consolidated

Note 7. Surplus from Operations Net (Gain)/Loss and Expenses Notes 2014 2013

Surplus from operation before income tax benefi t includes the following specifi c 
net (gain)/ loss and expenses:

$ $

(Gain)/loss on sale of fi nancial planning business - 1,000

(Gain) on adjustment to fair value - investment property 16 (1,684,652) (737,570)

Net (gain)/loss on disposal property, plant and equipment (47,420) 1,236

Depreciation

Buildings 26,149 28,074

Plant and equipment & leasehold improvements 79,627 73,036

105,776 101,110

Amortisation 17,390 18,029

Total depreciation & amortisation 123,166 119,139



44

Consolidated

Note 8. Income Tax Expense Notes 2014 2013

The income tax expense for the fi nancial year differs from the amount calculated 
on the surplus. The differences are reconciled as follows:

$ $

Surplus from ordinary activities before income tax expense/ (benefi t) 1,778,750 2,000,833

Income tax calculated @ 30% (2013 - 30%) (533,625) (600,250)

Add tax effect of:

Other non-allowable items (1,610) (1,281)

Other assessable income (1,707) (1,622)

(536,942) (603,153)

Less tax effect of:

Net (non-assessable)/non- deductible items 354,073 474,444

Other items - 23,216

Imputation credit 5,689 5,407

Overprovision prior years 475,494 4,152

Deferred tax recognised from prior year tax losses not previously recognised - 1,890,965

Current year tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised - -

Income tax benefi t 298,314 1,795,031

The components of tax benefi t comprise:

Current tax - 367,218

Deferred tax (177,180) 1,423,661

Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years 475,494 4,152

Aggregate income tax benefi t 298,314 1,795,031

Represented by:

Income tax benefi t from continuing operations 261,667 1,797,108

Income tax benefi t/(expense) from discontinuing operations 36,647 (2,077)

Deferred income tax assets in relation to tax losses carried forward not recognised in the statement 

of fi nancial position for the company as at 30 June 2014 amounted to $Nil (2013: $Nil).

298,314 1,795,031

Note 9. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand 1,600 4,700

Cash at bank 2,434,617 5,653,166

Cash on deposit 3,220,000 6,400,000

5,656,217 12,057,866

The above fi gures are reconciled to cash and cash equivalents at the end of the fi nancial year 
as shown in the statement of cash fl ows as follows:

Balances as above 5,656,217 12,057,866

plus: Cash and cash equivalents classifi ed within Asset held for sale 13 (c) 1,994,727 -

Balances as per statement of cash fl ows 7,650,944 12,057,866

Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June 2014 includes funds which must be maintained by the 

Health Fund in order to meet the requirements of the funds cash management policy amounting 

to $1,993,627 (30 June 2013: $5,792,130).

 

Notes to Financial Statements
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Consolidated

Note 10. Receivables 2014 2013

$ $

Receivable – current

Debtors - 25,657

Less: Provision for doubtful debts - -

- 25,657

Deferred management fees 1,100,000 2,000,000

PHI rebate receivable - 361,143

Interest receivable 75,492 165,995

Other receivables - 454,814

1,175,492 3,007,609

Receivable – non-current

Deferred management fees 12,732,300 11,255,266

12,732,300 11,255,266

Receivables as at 30 June 2013, includes the receivables in relation to the operation of the Transport 

Health Pty Ltd, Park Hill Garden business and Dental on Swan, which as at 30 June 2014 are classifi ed 

as Asset held for sale (refer to Note 13).

Note 11. Inventory

Inventory at cost - 32,538

Inventory as at 30 June 2013, includes the inventories in relation to the operation of Dental on Swan, which as 

at 30 June 2014 are classifi ed as Asset held for sale (refer to Note 13).

Note 12. Current Assets - Other

Prepayments 37,375 72,894

Mortgage loan 22,000 22,000

GST receivable 54,559 78,431

Other 40,727 31,561

154,661 204,886

Note 13. Asset Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

(a) Description
During the fi nancial year 2014, the Directors and management conducted a review of the viability of the different business segments of TFSL 

On 29 May 2014 the Directors of TFSL passed a resolution to seek expressions of interest for the sale of Transport Health Pty Ltd as well as Dental on Swan 

and the Park Hill Gardens Aged Care Facility freehold and business, and initiated an active program to identify buyers for these businesses.

Consequently the fi nancial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 present the assets and liabilities associated with these business as held for sale; 

and their performance had been reported as discontinued operations in the Statement of profi t or loss and other comprehensive income.

At the date of signing these fi nancial statements contracts have been executed. Refer to the Directors report events subsequent to balance date for details.
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Note 13. Asset Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (continued)

(b) Financial Performance and cash fl ows information
The fi nancial performance and cash fl ow information presented are for the fi nancial year ended 2014, and the corresponding comparative fi gures for 

the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2013.

Consolidated

2014 2013

Revenue $ $

Health insurance premium revenue 16,399,766 15,145,208

Dental revenue 1,181,299 1,108,778

Aged care service 5,229,115 5,095,278

Interest 600,315 631,787

Other (49,410) 1,003

23,361,085 21,982,054

Expenses (21,973,397) (21,147,656)

Profi t before income tax 1,387,688 834,398

Income tax benefi t / (expense) 36,647 (2,077)

Profi t from discontinued operations 1,424,335 832,321

Net cash infl ow from operating activities 1,520,384 1,076,373

Net cash outfl ow from investing activities (65,437) 990,247

Net cash outfl ow from fi nancing activities (272,567) 2,520,118

Net cash infl ow from discontinued operations 1,182,380 4,586,738

(c) Assets held for sale and associated liabilities
The following assets and liabilities were classifi ed as held for sale in relation to the discontinued operations as at 30 June 2014:

Transport Health 
Pty Ltd

Park Hill Garden 
Business

Dental 
On Swan Total

$ $ $ $

Assets classifi ed as held for sale:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,993,627 1,000 100 1,994,727

Trade and other receivables 874,594 55,505 3,998 934,097

Other fi nancial assets 11,673,700 - - 11,673,700

Property, plant and equipment - 7,587,158 56,747 7,643,905

Deferred tax asset - 225,987 - 225,987

Other assets 17,675 8,298 27,123 53,096

14,559,596 7,877,948 87,968 22,525,512

Liabilities directly associated with assets classifi ed as held for sale:

Trade and other payables 63,193 173,908 16,654 253,755

Provisions 1,852,608 691,640 101,787 2,646,035

Resident Bonds - 11,009,273 - 11,009,273

Contribution in advance and unearned revenue 2,974,949 - - 2,974,949

4,890,750 11,874,821 118,441 16,884,012

Notes to Financial Statements
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Consolidated

Note 14. Other Financial Assets 2014 2013

$ $

Other Financial – current

Cash deposits, Held-to-maturity investments 2,970,000 3,500,000

Other Financial – non-current

Ordinary shares 267,159 310,003

Bonds, Held-to-maturity investments 3,400,433 9,415,315

3,667,592 9,725,318

Other fi nancial assets as at 30 June 2013, includes the assets from Transport Health Pty Ltd, Park Hill Garden 

business and from the Dental on Swan business, which as at 30 June 2014 are classifi ed as Asset held for 

sale (refer to Note 13). Refer to note 26 for further information on fi nancial instruments.

Note 15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings

At cost

Independent valuation 2,900,000 10,275,000

Less: Accumulated depreciation (26,149) -

2,873,851 10,275,000

Plant and equipment

At cost 1,165,676 2,368,477

Less: Accumulated depreciation (612,224) (1,378,603)

553,452 989,874

Total property and plant and equipment 3,427,303 11,264,874

Property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2013, includes the assets of Transport Health Pty Ltd, Park Hill Garden business and of the Dental on Swan 

business, which as at 30 June 2014 are classifi ed as Asset held for sale (refer to Note 13).

Reconciliations of the written down values of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current and previous fi nancial 

year are set out below:

Land and 
Buildings

Plant and 
Equipment Total

2014 $ $ $

Consolidated

Carrying amount at 1 July 2013 10,275,000 989,874 11,264,874

Additions - 143,253 143,253

Disposals/Adjustments - (49,410) (49,410)

Transfer of Assets to Held For Sale (7,375,000) (450,638) (7,825,638)

Depreciation expense (note 7) (26,149) (79,627) (105,776)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2014 2,873,851 553,452 3,427,303

2013

Consolidated

Carrying amount at 1 July 2012 10,795,375 878,159 11,673,534

Additions - 251,668 251,473

Disposals/Adjustments - (5,433) (5,238)

Valuation increment 956,758 - 956,758

Depreciation expense (note 7) (157,133) (134,520) (291,653)

Transfer to investment property (note 16) (1,320,000) - (1,320,000)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2013 10,275,000 989,874 11,264,874

Refer to Note 17 for information in relation to the fair value of Land and Buildings and their level of fair value levels of fair value hierarchy.
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Land and buildings stated under the historical cost convention

If land and buildings were stated under the historical cost convention, the amounts would be as follows (including Land and Building classifi ed as Asset 

held for sale):

Consolidated

2014 2013

$ $

Land and buildings - at cost 7,054,719 7,054,719

Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,937,896) (1,793,610)

Written down value 5,116,823 5,261,109

Note 16. Investment Property

Balance at beginning of year 14,830,854 8,405,000

Additions 469,867 62,430

Net fair value adjustments 1,684,652 737,570

Transfer from Property, plant and equipment - 1,320,000

Balance at end of year 16,985,373 10,525,000

Building under construction - 4,305,854

16,985,373 14,830,854

The investment properties comprise the consolidated entity’s interest in serviced apartments and independent living units at the Mornington Retirement 

Village. Investment properties are stated at fair value. 

As at 30 June 2013, Buildings under construction comprises the value of land allocated to and costs incurred at that date in the construction of 

17 new independent living units at the Mornington Retirement Village. During the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2014 the construction of these units 

was completed and consequently became available for lease. 

Refer to Note 17 for information in relation to the fair value of Investment property and its level of fair value hierarchy. 

Note 17. Fair Value Measurement Hierarchy for Non-Financial Assets 

Valuations of Land and Buildings

The Consolidated entity’s property at 487 Swan Street, Richmond was valued as at 30 June 2014 by Mr Chris Dupen AAPI, Certifi ed Practising Valuer of 

Colliers International Consultancy and Valuation Pty Limited. There was no change in value for the Richmond property. At 30 June 2013 the properties 

were valued by Mr Chris Dupen AAPI, Certifi ed Practising Valuer of Colliers International Consultancy and Valuation Pty Limited and Mr John Conrick 

AAPI, Certifi ed Practising Valuer. The basis of valuation, for both years was determined by direct reference to recent transactions on arm length terms 

for Land and buildings comparable in size and location to those held by the Consolidated entity, and to the market yields for comparable properties.

Valuations of Investment property

As at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, independent valuations were obtained from Mr John Conrick AAPI, Certifi ed Practising Valuer of Colliers 

International Consultancy and Valuation Pty Limited. Fair value was determined by direct reference to recent transactions on arm’s length terms for 

buildings of comparable size and location to those held by the Consolidated entity, and to the market yields for comparable properties. 

Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 30 June 2014, the Fair value measurement hierarchy for Non-current assets is as follows: 

Fair value measurement at end of reporting period using:

Carrying amount as 
at 30 June 2014 Level 1(i) Level 2(i) Level 3(i)

Land at fair value 1,860,000 - - 1,860,000

Buildings at fair value 1,040,000 - - 1,040,000

Total Land and buildings 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000

Investments properties 16,985,373 - - 16,985,373

Property, plant and equipment – classifi ed as asset held for sale 7,762,044 - - 7,762,044

The above classifi cation is in accordance with the fair value hierarchy; see Note 1(a) i.

There have been no transfers between levels during the year.

Consolidated

Note 18. Intangible Assets 2014 2013

$ $

Computer software at cost 248,777 26,482

Less: Accumulated amortisation (209,060) (230,434)

39,717 30,048

Note 19. Payables

Other payables 1,375,013 1,296,442

Risk Equalisation Fund – contribution - 233,599

1,375,013 1,530,041

Payables as at 30 June 2013, includes the payables in relation to Transport Health Pty Ltd, Park Hill Garden 

business and from the Dental on Swan business, which as at 30 June 2014 are classifi ed as Asset held for sale 

(refer to Note 13).

Note 20. Interest Bearing Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities - current

Secured

Lease liability 4,051 10,825

Interest bearing liabilities – non-current

Lease liability 13,430 70,459

Bank Overdraft

The Group has a line of credit facility of $1.3 million with Westpac Banking Corporation, available until November 2015. An interest rate of 3.99% (2013: 

4.54%) is chargeable on a total amount drawn down. No overdraft interest was incurred in the current fi nancial year as no drawdowns were made as 

at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: $Nil). The line of credit is secured by a mortgage over the consolidated entity’s properties.

Refer to Note 25 for further information on fi nancial instruments.
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Consolidated

Note 21. Provisions 2014 2013

Provision – current $ $

Employee benefi ts (i) 469,388 1,052,921

Outstanding claims (ii) - 1,403,000

Unearned premium liability (iii) - -

469,388 2,455,921

Provisions – non-current

Employee benefi ts 19,258 278,843

Provisions as at 30 June 2013, includes provisions related to Transport Health Pty Ltd, Park Hill Garden business and from the Dental on Swan business, 

which as at 30 June 2014 are classifi ed as Asset held for sale (refer to Note 13).

Movement in provisions

Movements in each class of provision during the fi nancial year are set out below.

Consolidated Employee Benefi ts Consolidated Outstanding Claims

2014 2013 2014 2013

$ $ $

Carrying amount at start of year 1,331,764 1,342,656 1,403,000 1,314,000

Additional provisions recognised 66,917 (10,892) 333,000 89,000

Carrying amount at end of year 1,398,681 1,331,764 1,736,000 1,403,000

Represented by:

Current – (Note 21 (i) – (iii)) 469,388 1,052,921 - 1,403,000

Liability associated directly with Asset held for sale (Note 13 (c)) 929,293 - 1,736,000 -

Non-current – (Note 21) 19,258 278,843 - -

1,417,939 1,331,764 1,736,000 1,403,000

Consolidated

2014 2013

Note 22. Current Liabilities – Other $ $

Premiums in advance - 2,561,728

Resident Loans 9,184,650 8,168,000

Resident Bonds - 11,489,694

9,184,650 22,219,422

Current liabilities - Other as at 30 June 2013, includes Premiums in advance in relation to Transport Health 

Pty Ltd, and Resident bonds from the Park Hill Garden business, which as at 30 June 2014 are classifi ed as 

Asset held for sale (refer to Note 13).

Note 23. Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 3,797,756 3,859,349

Notes to Financial Statements
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Consolidated

Note 24. Reserves and Retained Surpluses 2014 2013

(a) Reserve $ $

Asset revaluation

At the beginning of the fi nancial year 4,500,832 3,831,926

Revaluation increment - 956,758

Deferred tax adjustment - (287,852)

At the end of the fi nancial year 4,500,832 4,500,832

Financial assets reserve

At the beginning of the fi nancial year 3,197 -

Revaluation of fi nancial assets 35,783 4,567

Deferred tax adjustment (10,739) (1,370)

At the end of the fi nancial year 28,241 3,197

Total reserve 4,529,073 4,504,029

(b) Retained surpluses

Retained profi ts at the beginning of the fi nancial year 30,980,470 27,184,606

Net surplus attributable to members of Transport Friendly 2,077,065 3,795,864

Retained surplus at the end of the fi nancial year 33,057,535 30,980,470

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets, as described in note 1.

Financial assets reserve
Financial assets reserve records revaluation of available for sale fi nancial assets.

Note 25. Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The consolidated entity’s principal fi nancial instruments comprise of:

• Cash and cash equivalents

• Local money market instruments

• Short-term investments

• Bonds

• Receivables

• Payables

• Loans to and from subsidiaries

Details of the signifi cant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement, and the basis on 

which income and expenses are recognised with respect to fi nancial instruments above are disclosed in Note 1 to the fi nancial statements.

The activities of the consolidated entity expose it to market interest rate risks, credit risks and liquidity risks. The risk framework recognises the 

unpredictability of fi nancial markets and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effects on the fi nancial performance of the consolidated entity. The key 

objectives of the management of assets and liabilities is to ensure that suffi cient liquidity is maintained at all times to meet the settlement of insurance 

and other liabilities, and within these parameters to optimise the investment return for members.

The carrying amounts of the fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities by category are detailed as follows:



52

Note 25. Financial Instruments (continued) Consolidated

2014 2013

$ $

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,650,944 12,057,866

Loans and receivables 14,863,899 14,316,436

Held-to-maturity investments 18,066,133 12,915,315

Available-for-sale 267,159 310,003

Total fi nancial assets 40,848,135 39,599,620

Financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Payables 1,039,224 1,054,876

Interest bearing liabilities 17,481 81,284

Other current liabilities 20,193,923 19,657,694

Total fi nancial liabilities 21,250,628 20,793,854

Net fi nancial assets 19,597,507 18,805,766

The above fi nancial instruments as at 30 June 2014, includes the fi nancial assets and Liabilities of Transport Health Pty Ltd, Park Hill Garden business 

and Dental on Swan business, which are classifi ed as Asset held for sale (refer to Note 13).

i. Market risks
The market risks the Consolidated entity is exposed to through its fi nancial instruments are the market value risk and interest rate risk due to the nature 

of its investments.

The Consolidated entity is not exposed to foreign currency fl uctuations through its receivables or payables relating to purchases of supplies and 

consumables. 

Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing assets. Assets with fl oating rate interest expose the consolidated entity to cash fl ow interest risk. Fixed 

interest assets expose the consolidated entity to fair value interest rate risk. The Consolidated entity’s strategy is to invest in high quality, liquid, fi xed 

interest securities and cash and to actively manage the duration. The interest bearing assets are actively managed to achieve a balance between cash 

fl ow risk and interest rate risk, bearing in mind the liquidity requirements of the business. The Consolidated entity held its assets in interest bearing 

securities and bank bills at the balance date which were suffi cient to cover all current liabilities and prudential capital requirements.

The Consolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rates on those fi nancial assets is provided below.

The Consolidated entity is exposed to market value risk, particularly on its investments is addressed in the prudential capital requirements by the need 

to hold a Resilience Reserve.

The carrying amounts of fi nancial assets and liabilities that are exposed to interest rate risk are detailed in the interest rate exposure of fi nancial 

instruments note below.

Interest rate exposure of fi nancial instruments

The Consolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a fi nancial instrument’s value will fl uctuate as a result of changes in market 

interest rate and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods, is set out in the following table. For interest rates applicable to each 

class of assets or liability refer to individual notes to the fi nancial statements.

**  Resident accommodation bonds included in other liabilities are interest free unless refunds due are effected outside statutory period where average interest rate payable is 5%.

Notes to Financial Statements
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2014 Consolidated

Weighted 
average effective 

interest rate %
Carrying 
amount

Fixed interest 
maturing in 

1 year or less

Fixed interest 
maturing in more 

than 1 year
Variable 

interest rate
Non-interest 

bearing

$ $ $ $ $

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2.42% 7,650,944 4,190,000 - 3,456,244 4,700

Receivables - 14,863,899 - - - 14,863,899

Other-current assets – 

Mortgage loan 10.00% 22,000 - 22,000 - -

Other fi nancial assets - 267,159 - - - 267,159

Other fi nancial assets – 

held to maturity 4.23% 18,044,133 8,670,000 - 9,374,133 -

Other-non-current assets - - - -

Financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 5.50% 17,481 4,051 13,430 - -

Payables 1,039,224 - - - 1,039,224

Other liabilities - 20,193,923 - - - 20,193,923

Net fi nancial assets/(liabilities) 19,597,507 12,855,949 8,570 12,830,377 (6,097,389)

2013 Consolidated

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3.21% 12,057,866 6,400,000 - 5,653,166 4,700

Receivables - 14,294,436 - - - 14,294,436

Other-current assets -Mortgage loan 10.00% 22,000 - 22,000 - -

Other fi nancial assets - 310,003 - - - 310,003

Other fi nancial assets – held to maturity 5.00% 12,915,315 3,500,000 - 9,415,315 -

Other-non-current assets

Financial liabilities ,

Interest bearing liabilities 5.68% 81,284 10,825 70,459 - -

Payables - 1,054,876 - - - 1,054,876

Other liabilities 5.00% 19,657,694 - - - 19,657,694

Net fi nancial assets/(liabilities) 18,805,766 9,889,175 (48,459) 15,068,481 (6,103,431)

Note (a) Interest is chargeable on the overdraft balance if the consolidated entity overdraft balance exceeds the consolidated entity cash balances with the ANZ Bank.

ii. Credit risks
Credit risk exposure is constantly monitored by the Audit Committee. All interest bearing securities and cash are held with fi nancial institutions as 

approved by the Audit Committee. The Consolidated entity does not expect any investment counterparties to fail to meet their obligations given their 

strong credit rating.

The Consolidated entity does not engage in hedging for its fi nancial assets.

Provision for impairment for fi nancial assets is calculated based on past experience, and current and expected changes in credit ratings.

The carrying amount of fi nancial assets recorded in the fi nancial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents the consolidated entity’s 

maximum exposure to credit risk.
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Note 25. Financial Instruments (continued)
As at the reporting date, there is no event to indicate that any fi nancial assets were impaired. The following table discloses the ageing of fi nancial assets:

Ageing analysis of fi nancial assets

Past due but not impaired  

Carrying 
amount

Not past due and 
not impaired

Less than 
1 month 1-3 months 3 months over Impaired

2014 Consolidated $ $ $ $ $ $

Loans and Receivables

Receivables - current

Debtors 7,995 7,995 - - - -

Deferred management fees 1,100,000 1,100,000 - - - -

Other receivables 1,001,604 1,001,604 - - - -

Current asset - other - - -

Mortgage loan 22,000 22,000 - - - -

Receivables – non-current

Deferred management fees 12,732,300 12,732,300 - - - -

Total 14,863,899 14,863,899 - - - -

2013 Consolidated

Loans and Receivables

Receivables - current

Debtors 25,657 25,657 - - - -

Deferred management fees 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - -

Other receivables 1,013,513 1,013,513 - - - -

Current asset - other

Mortgage loan 22,000 22,000 - - - -

Receivables – non-current

Deferred management fees 11,255,266 11,255,266 - - - -

Total 14,316,436 14,316,436 - - - -

iii. Liquidity risks
At least 43% of the consolidated entity’s funds are held in liquid and short term deposits with banks to meet its working capital requirements and ensure 

suffi cient funds are available to meet its obligations.

The Consolidated entity minimises liquidity risk by maintaining suffi cient liquid assets to meet the prudential capital requirements.

The following tables disclose the contractual maturity analysis for the fi nancial liabilities of the consolidated entity.

The tables below highlight the contractual maturity dates of liabilities as required by accounting standards, resulting in a defi ciency in current asset 

ratio in the statement of fi nancial position. Management have several liquidity management strategies which assess the actual maturity of these 

contractual liabilities and liquid funds are invested to match the timing of these liabilities. During the fi nancial year the consolidated entity fi nalised the 

implementation of investment strategies which sought to minimise interest rate, credit and other risks. A portion of funds were moved into longer term 

non-current investments which resulted in the defi ciency in current assets.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Maturity dates

Carrying 
amount Nominal amount

Less than 
1 month 1-3 months

3 months 
-1 year 1- 5 years

2014 Consolidated $ $ $ $ $ $

Payables

Other payables 1,368,776 1,368,776 1,368,776 - - -

Interest bearing liabilities - - - -

Interest bearing liabilities 17,481 17,481 341 680 3,030 13,430

Other - - -

Contributions in advance - - - - - -

Resident loans 9,331,650 9,331,650 - - 9,331,650  -

Resident bonds - - - - - -

Total 10,717,907 10,717,907 1,369,117 680 9,334,680 13,430

2013 Consolidated

Payables

Other payables 1,352,136 1,352,136 1,352,136 - - -

Interest bearing liabilities - - - -

Interest bearing liabilities 81,824 81,824 1,170 2,380 8,642 69,632

Other - - -

Contributions in advance 2,561,728 2,561,728 543,682 237,490 1,523,592 256,964

Resident loans 8,168,000 8,168,000 - - 8,168,000 -

Resident bonds 11,489,694 11,489,694 - 183,356 11,306,338 -

Total 23,653,382 23,653,382 1,896,988 423,226 21,006,572 326,596

(a) Net fair value of fi nancial assets and liabilities On-balance sheet
The net fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing monetary fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities of the consolidated entity 

approximates their carrying amounts. Listed investments for $267,159 (2013: 310,003) have been valued at the quoted market bid price at balance 

date, adjusted for transaction costs expected to be incurred, which represent a level 1 hierarchy of fair value measurement. Unlisted investments where 

there is no organised fi nancial market are stated at cost.

(b) Sensitivity Analysis
Management has assessed the potential impact from shift in the market interest rates and movement in other price risk as insignifi cant.

Note 26. Key Management Personnel Compensation
Key Management Personnel includes directors and key executives of parent and controlled entities.

Consolidated

2014 2013

$ $

Short Term Benefi ts

Salary, superannuation and non-cash benefi ts 1,210,610 1,382,060

Post-Employment Benefi ts

Retirement, pensions benefi ts 110,540 107,399

Long Term Benefi ts

Long service leave 15,130 53,169

Termination benefi ts - -

1,336,280 1,542,628

Related parties are set out in note 29.
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Note 27. Remuneration of Auditors
During the year, the auditor of the consolidated entity earned the following remuneration:

Consolidated

Notes 2014 2013

Assurance Services $ $

(i) Audit services

Audit of fi nancial reports 105,000 79,500

(ii) Non assurance services

Non assurance services 46,400 -

Total remuneration for assurance services 151,400 79,500

Note 28. Employee Benefi ts

Employee benefi ts liabilities

Provision for employee benefi ts

Current 21 469,388 1,052,921

Non-current 21 19,258 278,843

Aggregate employee benefi ts liabilities 488,646 1,331,764

Employee numbers

Average number of employees during the fi nancial year 159 168

Note 29. Related Parties

(a) Directors
The names of persons who were directors of Transport Friendly Society Ltd at any time during the fi nancial year are as follows:

Mr Phillip S. Altieri

Mr John P. Coulson

Mr John A. Giraud

Mr Philip N. Lovel AM

Mr Nicholas B. Madden

Mr Martyn R. Pickersgill

Mr Geoffrey W. Scully

(b) Other transactions with Directors and Director-related entities
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favorable than those available to other parties other than 

directors and current employees who are entitled to a discount on their health insurance premiums.

(c) Wholly-owned Group
The wholly owned Group consists of Transport Friendly Society Ltd and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Transport Health Pty Ltd, Old Richmond Pty Ltd, 

Park Hill Gardens Aged Care Facility Pty Ltd and Maximeyes Optical Victoria Pty Ltd.

Ownership interests in these subsidiaries are set out in note 31.

Transactions between Transport Friendly Society Ltd and other companies in the wholly-owned Group during the years ended 30 June 2014 and 

30 June 2013 consisted of:

• Intercompany amounts advanced to Transport Friendly Society Ltd from controlled entities

• Intercompany amounts repaid to Transport Friendly Society Ltd by controlled entities

• The receipt of management fees by Transport Friendly Society Ltd from controlled entities

• The receipt of rental income charged to a controlled entity for the use of land and buildings

Notes to Financial Statements
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Equity holding Cost of parent entity’s investment

2014 2013 2014 2013

Note 30. Investments in Controlled Entities $ $ $ $

Transport Health Pty Ltd 100 100 100 100

Old Richmond Pty Ltd 100 100 20,000 20,000

Park Hill Gardens Aged Care Facility Pty Ltd 100 100 1,000 1,000

Maximeyes Optical Victoria Pty Ltd 100 100 1,000 1,000

22,100 22,100

Consolidated

Note 31.  Reconciliation of surplus from Ordinary Activities after Income Tax to Net Cash
Infl ows from Operating Activities

2014 2013

$ $

Surplus from ordinary activities after income tax 2,077,065 3,795,864

Depreciation and amortisation 304,897 309,682

Net loss on sale of non-current assets 47,420 1,236

Loss on sale of business operation - 1,000

Changes in fair value – investment property (1,684,652) (737,570)

Gain on sale of investment in listed equities (16,910) -

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Increase in receivables (579,200) (929,640)

Decrease in inventories 5,526 17,132

Decrease in other operating assets 26,193 34,240

Increase in payables 44,081 378,859

Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 399,917 78,107

Increase/ (decrease) in other operating liabilities 207,918 (277,568)

Increase in deferred tax liabilities (excluding movement for changes in fair value though equity reserve) (287,840) (1,793,660)

Net cash infl ow from operating activities 544,415 877,682

Parent

Note 32. Parent Entity Disclosures 2014 2013

Set out below is the supplementary information about the parent entity. $ $

Profi t after income tax benefi t 822,763 2,361,768

Total comprehensive income 847,809 3,034,746

Statement of fi nancial position

Total current assets 2,317,778 3,934,378

Total assets 43,105,549 41,287,817

Total current liabilities 13,284,945 12,067,989

Total liabilities 17,217,690 16,247,766

Net assets 25,887,859 25,040,050

Equity

Revaluation surplus reserve 4,529,076 4,504,029

Retained surplus 21,358,783 20,536,021

Total equity 25,887,859 25,040,050

The above fi nancial performance information for the Parent entity includes the revenue and expenditure generated by Dental on Swan, as well as some 

operating expenditure of Transport Health Pty Ltd , which has been classifi ed as Discontinued operations in the Statement of profi t or loss and other 

comprehensive income for both years, 2014 and 2013.
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Note 32. Parent Entity Disclosures (continued) 

The fi nancial position of the Parent entity as at 30 June 2104 includes assets and liabilities of Transport Health Pty Ltd, Park Hill Garden business and 

Dental on Swan business, which are classifi ed as Asset held for sale (refer to Note 13).

Guarantees entered into by the parent entity in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries
The parent entity and some of its subsidiaries are party to a deed of cross guarantee under which the company guarantees the debts of the others. No 

defi ciencies of assets exist in any of these subsidiaries.

Contingent liabilities
The parent entity had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: Nil).

Capital commitments – Property, plant and equipment
The parent entity capital commitments for property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2014 are shown in note 34.

Signifi cant accounting policies
The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the consolidated entity, as disclosed in note 1, except for the following:

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the parent entity. 

Note 33. Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2014 (30 June 2013: Nil).

Note 34. Commitments
At reporting date the Consolidated entity has entered into contracts for capital expenditure of $3,692,220 (2013: $3,692,220) not all of which has been 

incurred or provided for in the fi nancial statements. The amounts are payable:

Statement of comprehensive income 2014 2013 

Capital commitments $ $

Within one year 357,615 618,908

One year or later and no later than fi ve years - -

Later than fi ve years - -

357,615 618,908

Capital commitments – fi nance 

Within one year 6,480 16,432

One year or later and no later than fi ve years 14,995 83,424

Later than fi ve years - -

Total commitment 21,475 99,856

Less: future fi nance charges (3,994) (18,572)

Net commitment recognised as liabilities 17,481 81,284

Representing

Lease liability – current (note 20) 4,051 10,825

Lease liability – non-current (note 20) 13,430 70,459

Note 35. Company Limited by Shares and Guarantee
As at 30 June 2014 the parent company was a company limited by shares (nil shares issued) and guarantee. Every member undertakes to contribute to 

the assets of the company in the event of its winding up during the time he or she is a member or within one year afterwards for payment of any possible 

debts and liabilities of the company contracted before the time at which he or she ceased to be a member and of the costs, charges and expenses of 

such winding up as may be required but which in no circumstances is to exceed one dollar - $1.00.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Note 36. Health Insurance
The disclosures below relate only to the health insurance activities of the relevant controlled entities and do not therefore include the non-insurance 

activities of the healthcare businesses.

2014 2013

(a) Details of income and expenses $ $

Premium revenue 16,399,766 15,145,208

Discount (189,605) (152,190)

16,210,161 14,993,018

Claims expense (13,261,040) (11,990,420)

Net risk equalisation trust fund contributions (561,223) (834,208)

State levies (27,385) (21,557)

Net claims incurred (13,849,648) (12,846,185)

Underwriting result 2,360,513 2,146,833

Net investment revenue 600,314 631,787

Management fee (1,621,016) (1,349,372)

Other expenses - -

Surplus 1,339,811 1,429,248

(b) Outstanding claims provision
Outstanding claims – central estimate of the expected present value of future payments for claims incurred 1,515,000 1,224,000

Risk margin 164,000 133,000

Claim handling costs 57,000 46,000

Gross outstanding claims liability 1,736,000 1,403,000

Movement in the gross outstanding claims provision

Balance at the beginning of the fi nancial year 1,403,000 1,314,000

Claims incurred during the year 13,261,040 11,990,595

Claims paid during the year (12,928,040) (11,901,595)

Balance at the end of the fi nancial year 1,736,000 1,403,000

Current 1,736,000 1,403,000

The expected future payments for claims incurred are expected to be settled within one year and as such the undiscounted value approximates their 

present value.

The risk margin of $164,000 (2013: $133,000) combined with the central estimate, is estimated to equate to a probability of adequacy of at least 75% 

(2013: 75%). The margin has been based on an analysis of the Transport Health Pty Ltd’s past experience. This analysis modelled the volatility of past 

payments and the result is assumed to be indicative of future volatility.

The outstanding claims liability is derived using separate calculations on the data for hospital claims and ancillary claims. The outstanding liability has 

been estimate based on a combination of the chain ladder method for historical claims and the Bornheutter- Ferguson method for more current months 

to blend actual payments experience with prior forecasts of claims costs for a service month.

The average expected term to settlement of claims from the end of the fi nancial year is estimated to be 1.6 months.

Impact of changes in key variables 
The following table shows the impact on amounts recognised in the fi nancial statements of the consolidated entity’s health insurance subsidiary arising 

from movement in the key assumptions used in the calculation of the outstanding claims provision.

Movement in variable Surplus/Defi ciency after tax Net Assets

$ $

Increased chain ladder development factors (84) 84

Decreased chain ladder development factors 82 (82)

Adopting chain ladder method for all periods 551 551

(c) Unexpired risk liability  
The calculation of the liability adequacy test has found that there is no need to provide for an unexpired risk liability at 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil) at a 

75% (2013: 75%) and below probability adequacy. 
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Note 37. Solvency Requirement
The directors and management of TFSL devoted signifi cant time in understanding and preparing for the signifi cant changes introduced by PHIAC to the 

regulatory capital requirements for health insurers, which fully came into effect from 1 July 2014.

Transport Health has a Board approved Capital Management Policy (CMP) and Liquidity Management Plan (LMP) that complies with the Private Health 

Insurance (Health Benefi ts Fund Administration) Amendment Rule 2013 (Admin Rules). Transport Health targets a CARM of 3.0 (where CARM is the ratio 

of net assets to the regulatory minimum capital requirement); subject to target capital always exceeding the regulatory minimum by at least $1.5 million. 

As at 30 June 2014 Transport Health minimum regulatory capital requirement was $3.0 million and CARM of 3.9.

The table below shows the information for the year ended 30 June 2014 in relation to the derivation of the Capital Adequacy Requirement, the Capital 

Adequacy Risk Multiple (CARM2); and the solvency requirement. 

Capital and Solvency Requirements $000

Capital Position

Assets 16,388

- Cash held 888

Liabilities 4,733

Net assets 11,655

Capital Standard

Prudent liabilities 991

Stress test amount 880

Operational Risk amount 1,088

Minimum capital requirement: Quantum of assets test 2,959

Excess Capital: Quantum of Assets Test 8,696

Prudent liabilities 991

Maximum default loss amount 1,009

Minimum capital requirement: Concentration of assets test 2,000

Excess Capital: Concentration of Assets Test 9,655

Minimum Capital Requirement 2,959

CARM 3.94

Solvency standard

Cash management amount 177

Excess cash: Solvency Surplus 711

The result for 30 June 2013 is not shown because the capital standards changed during the year and the CARMs are therefore not comparable between 

2013 and 2014. 

Note 38. Subsequent Events
Other than the following, the directors are not aware of any signifi cant events since the end of the reporting period.

In April 2014, the members of TFSL voted to demutualise TFSL and issue shares to eligible members on or around 1 July 2014. As a result TFSL issued 

18,591,500 shares to eligible members on 1 July 2014. As the shareholders verify their holdings these shares will be recorded as issued shares of 

TFSL, the fi nal number may vary from the initial issue depending upon holdings verifi ed within the set timeframe. The expected fi nancial impact of this 

event is that the retained surplus of TFSL (the parent entity) will be transferred to the issued capital account.

On 1 July 2014 the status of the registered health fund Transport Health changed from not for profi t to for profi t. At the date of this report no reliable 

estimate of the fi nancial impact of the change can be made.

On 18 September 2014 TFSL exchanged contracts for the sale of Park Hill Gardens Aged Care Facility, business and freehold. The sale is subject to the 

transfer being approved by the Department of Social Services, which is considered will be granted within the ordinary course of business. The assets 

and liabilities of the business impacted by the sale have been classifi ed as held of sale in these fi nancial statements, with the details provided in note 

13 (c) to the fi nancial statements. 

On 18 September 2014 TFSL exchanged contracts for the sale of the shares in Transport Health Pty Ltd and the business of Dental on Swan. The sale 

is subject to the health fund being converted to an open access fund, which is considered will be achievable within the time prescribed in the contract. 

The assets and liabilities of the entity and business impacted by the sale have been classifi ed as held of sale in these fi nancial statements, with the 

details provided in note 13 (c) to the fi nancial statements. 

Notes to Financial Statements
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The Directors declare that:

1. The fi nancial statements and notes set out on pages 22-60 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:

i. comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which, as stated in accounting policy Note 1 to the fi nancial statements, constitutes compliance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); and

ii. give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s fi nancial position as at 30 June 2014 and of their performance for the year ended on that date.

2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that Transport Friendly Society Ltd will be able to pay its debts as and when they 

become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Mr Martyn R. Pickersgill Mr Nicholas B. Madden

Director Director

Melbourne 

Dated this

Directors’ Declaration
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Independence Declaration
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Contact Information

TFSL
Level 1, 487 Swan Street, Richmond VIC 3121

(03) 8420 1888

tfsl.org.au

The Mornington Retirement Village
150 Tyabb Road, Mornington VIC 3931

(03) 5970 5500

themornington.com.au

The Mews
160 Tyabb Road, Mornington VIC 3931

(03) 5970 5500

themornington.com.au 

Shearwater Apartments
150 Tyabb Road, Mornington VIC 3931

(03) 5970 5507

themornington.com.au

at THE MORNINGTON

at THE MORNINGTON

at THE MORNINGTON
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 3



PO Box 5052, Burnley VIC 3121
Phone: (03) 8420 1888
ABN 75 052 046 625

tfsl.org.au


